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NATIONAL FITTINGS LIMITED 
Registered Office: 112, Madhapur Road, Kaniyur Village,  

Karumathampatti (via), Coimbatore - 641 659
CIN No. : L29199TZ1993PLC008034 Tel : +91 99432 93000 / 99439 93001  

email : admin@naionalfitting.com web : www.nationalfitting.com

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
Notice is hereby given that the 27th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company will be held at 
the Registered Office of the Company at SF No.112, Madhapur Road, Kaniyur Village, Sulur Taluk, 
Karumathampatti (via), Coimbatore - 641 659 on Wednesday the 30th day of September 2020 at 10.30 
AM to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1.	 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31st 

March 2020 together with Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2.	 To appoint a Director in place of Mrs Panath Anitha (DIN: 07059205), who retires by rotation and 
being eligible offers herself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3.	 To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as a special 
resolution:

	 “RESOLVED that Mr R Alagar (DIN No: 0023112), be and hereby re-appointed as an Independent 
Director of the Company under the Category of Non-Executive Independent Director not liable to 
retire by rotation to hold office for a term of five consecutive years up to 14.08.2024.

4.	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an 
ordinary resolution:

	 “RESOLVED that in partial modification of the resolution passed in this regard by the members of 
the Company at 25th Annual General Meeting held on 10.05.2019 and pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 196, 197, 203 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the rules made there under read with Schedule V to the said Act and the Articles of Association of 
the Company, the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for variation 
in remuneration of Mr A V Palaniswamy (DIN 01817391) Managing Director of the Company with 
effect from 01st June, 2019 till the remaining period of this tenure ending on 31st December, 2023 
as follows:

	 Salary 	 :	 Rs 1,50,000/- per month

	 “RESOLVED further that in the event in any financial year during the tenure of the Managing Director, 
the Company does not earn any profit or earns inadequate profits the Company may pay to the 
Managing Director, the above remuneration as the minimum remuneration.”

5.	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an 
ordinary resolution:

	 “RESOLVED that in partial modification of the resolution passed in this regard by the members of 
the Company at 26th Annual General Meeting held on 23.09.2019 and pursuant to the provisions of 
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Section 196, 197, 203 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the rules made there under read with Schedule V to the said Act and the Articles of Association of 
the Company, the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for variation 
in remuneration of Mr Jayaram Govindarajan (DIN 02178416) Whole Time Director of the Company 
with effect from 01st June, 2019 till the remaining period of this tenure ending on 13th December, 
2021 as follows:

	 Salary 	 :	 Rs 1,50,000/- per month

	 “RESOLVED further that in the event in any financial year during the tenure of the Whole Time 
Director, the Company does not earn any profit or earns inadequate profits the Company may pay 
to the Whole Time Director, the above remuneration as the minimum remuneration.”

/ By order of the Board /

Place	 :	 Coimbatore	 For NATIONAL FITTINGS LIMITED 
Date	 :	 30.06.2020	 Sd/- A.V. Palaniswamy
			   DIN No. 01817391 
			   Managing Director

NOTES :

Section A

1)	 Pursuant to Clause 16 of the listing agreement with the Stock Exchanges, the Register of Members 
and Share Transfer Register will remain closed from 24th September, 2020 to 30th September, 2020 
(both days inclusive) in connection with the 27th Annual General Meeting of the Company.

2)	 Members wishing to claim unclaimed dividends are requested to correspond with the Company 
Secretary. The Dividend which are not claimed within seven years from the date of transfer to the 
Unpaid Dividend Account will as per Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, be transferred to 
Investor Education and Protection Fund. The Company has uploaded the details of the unpaid and 
unclaimed dividend amounts on the website of the Company as also on the website of the Ministry 
of the Corporate Affairs.

3)	 This Notice and Annual Report will be available on the website of the Company.

4)	 Members holding shares in electronic form are hereby informed that Bank Account details registered 
against their depository accounts will be used by the Company for payment of dividend. Any changes 
of Bank particulars are to be advised to their Depository Participants

Section B

1.	 In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is a norm to be followed 
and pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 
2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs followed by Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 
2020, physical attendance of the Members to the AGM venue is not required and Annual General 
Meeting (AGM) be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence, 
Members can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM.
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2.	 Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. 
However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the AGM 
through VC/OAVM and participate thereat and cast their votes through e-voting.

3.	 The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled 
time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The 
facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on 
first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or 
more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the 
Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on 
account of first come first served basis.

4.	 The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose 
of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5.	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars 
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 
the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to 
be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with 
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as 
the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting system as 
well as venue voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL.

6.	 In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the 
Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.nationalfitting.
com The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited 
at www.bseindia.com and the AGM Notice is also available on the website of NSDL (agency for 
providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com.

7.	 AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 
dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:-

The remote e-voting period begins on 27th September, 2020 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on 29th 
September, 2020 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting 
thereafter.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned 
below:

Step 1: Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

Details on Step 1 is mentioned below:

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.
evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2.	 Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 
under ‘Shareholders’ section.

3.	 A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password and a Verification Code 
as shown on the screen.

	 Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.
nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in 
credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4.	 Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. 
Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or 
Physical

Your User ID is

a) �For Members who hold shares 
in demat account with NSDL

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** 
then your user ID is IN300***12******.

b) �For Members who hold shares 
in demat account with CDSL

16 Digit Beneficiary ID
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then your 
user ID is 12**************

c) �For Members holding shares 
in Physical Form

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the 
company
For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then 
user ID is 101456001***

5.	 Your password details are given below: 

	 a)	 If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and 
cast your vote.

	 b)	 If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 
password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need 
to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password.

	 c)	 How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

		  (i)	� If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ 
is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from 
your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. 
The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits 
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of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file 
contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’. 

		  (ii)	� If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for 
those shareholders whose email ids are not registered 

6.	 If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your 
password:

	 a)	 Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?” (If you are holding shares in your demat account 
with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

	 b)	 Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available 
on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

	 c)	 If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name 
and your registered address.

	 d)	 Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the 
e-Voting system of NSDL.

7.	 After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check 
box.

8.	 Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9.	 After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Details on Step 2 is given below:
How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?
1.	 After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of e-Voting. Click on e-Voting. 

Then, click on Active Voting Cycles.

2.	 After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you 
are holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status.

3.	 Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote.

4.	 Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

5.	 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of 
shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

6.	 Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 

7.	 You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 
confirmation page.

8.	 Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1	 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned 
copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen 
signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail 
to bk.scrutiniser@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

2.	 It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost 
care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five 
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unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through 
the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.
evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password. 

3.	 In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and 
e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or 
call on toll free no.: 1800-222-990 or send a request to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre at evoting@nsdl.co.in 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set 
out in this notice:

1.	 In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned 
copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR 
(self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to nationalfittingsltd@gmail.com

	 In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 
digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self 
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 
nationalfittingsltd@gmail.com 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

1.	 The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for 
remote e-voting.

2.	 Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and 
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred 
from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM.

3.	 Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, 
they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

4.	 The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for 
e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1.	 Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL 
e-Voting system. Members may access the same at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com under shareholders/
members login by using the remote e-voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in 
shareholder/members login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the 
members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID 
and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the 
notice to avoid last minute rush. Further members can also use the OTP based login for logging 
into the e-Voting system of NSDL.

2.	 Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

3.	 Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 
disturbance during the meeting.
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4.	 Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting 
via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It 
is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid 
glitches.

5.	 Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in 
advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 
(company email id). The same will be replied by the company suitably.

Section C

(i)	 The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital 
of the Company as on the cut-off date of 23rd September, 2020

(ii)	 Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become member of the Company after dispatch 
of the notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 23rd September, 2020 may obtain the 
login ID and password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or info@ skdc-consultants.com

	 However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then you can use your 
existing user ID and password for casting your vote. If you forgot your password, 	you can reset 
your password by using “Forgot User Details/Password” option available on www. evoting.nsdl.com 
or contact NSDL at the following toll free no.: 1800-222-990.

(iii)	 A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners 
maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of 
remote e-voting as well as voting at the VC/OAVM facility 

(iv)	 Mr. B Krishnamoorthy, Chartered Accountant (Membership No. 20439) has been appointed for as the 
Scrutinizer for providing facility to the members of the Company to scrutinize the voting and remote 
e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

(v)	 The Chairman shall, at the Annual General Meeting, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on 
which voting is to be held, allow voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of “remote e-voting” 
for all those members who are present at the Annual General Meeting but have not cast their votes 
by availing the remote e-voting facility.

(vi)	 The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of venue voting at the Annual General Meeting, unblock 
the votes cast through remote e-voting and venue voting in the presence of at least two witnesses 
not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not later than three days of the conclusion 
of the Annual General Meeting a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favor or 
against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the 
same and declare the result of the voting forthwith.

(vii)	The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the 
Company www.nationalfitting.com and on the website of NSDL immediately after the declaration of 
result by the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing. The results shall also be immediately 
forwarded to the BSE Limited, Mumbai.

(viii)	 Members are requested to intimate Change of Address, if any, immediately and quote the Registered 
Folio Number in the correspondence with the Company.
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(ix) All communications should be addressed 

	 The Secretarial Department  
NATIONAL FITTINGS LIMITED 
(CIN No. : L29199TZ1993PLC008034) 
Registered Office 
SF No 112, Madhapur Road 
Kaniyur, Sulur Taluk 
Karumathampatti - Via Coimbatore - 641 659 
Ph : 99432 93000 / 99439 93001 
Email id: accounts@nationalfitting.com, nationalfittingsltd@gmail.com

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

A)	 Stock Exchanges on which the Company’s shares are listed :

	 The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 
Dalal Street, 
Mumbai - 400 001

B)	 Share Transfer Services :
	 Share Transfer Agents / Registrars for Physical and Demat Segments :

	 M/s. SKDC Consultants Ltd. 
	 Kanapathy Towers, 3rd Floor 
 	 1391/A-1, Sathy Road 
 	 Ganapathy 
 	 Coimbatore - 641 006 
 	 Ph : 0422 - 4958995, 2539835 
	 email : info@skdc-consultants.com

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 
(PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013) 

As required by Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the following explanatory statement sets 
out all material facts relating to the business mentioned under Item No. 3, 4 & 5 of the accompanying 
Notice:

Agenda 3: Re-appointment Mr R Alagar as Independent Director

As per the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act,2013 and the Rules made thereunder, an 
Independent Director can be reappointed for a second term of maximum 5 (five) years by obtaining 
approval of the shareholders by a way of special resolution and on disclosure of such reappointment 
in the Board’s Report. 

Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 provides for performance evaluation by the Board before 
extending the term of Independent Director. 
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Mr. R Alagar has given declaration to the Board that he meets the criteria of independence as provided 
under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act,2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of Listing Regulations and 
intimation in Form DIR-8 in terms of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Director) Rules 2014, 
to the effect that he is not disqualified under Sub-section(2) of Section 164 of the Companies Act 2013

The Board of Directors and Nomination & Remuneration Committee are of the opinion that considering 
the vast experience, knowledge and the possession of relevant expertise by Mr. R Alagar his continued 
association would be of immense benefit to the Board. 

Mr R Alagar fulfils the specified conditions of independence specified in Act and he is independent of 
the management. He is also not related to any other Director of the Company.

It is therefore proposed to appoint Mr R Alagar, as Independent Director on the Board of the Company 
for a term of five consecutive years up to 14.08.2024 and a brief profile of him is also provided at the 
end of this notice.

Except the Mr R Alagar none of the Directors or Key Management Personnel of the Company and their 
relatives has any interest, financially or otherwise, in the proposed resolution. 

Your Board recommends that his re-appointment be confirmed by the members of the Company

Agenda 4: Variation in Remuneration of Managing Director, Mr A V Palaniswmay

Mr A V Palaniswamy was appointed as Managing Director of the Company, at a remuneration of ` 
2,00,000/- p.m. with effect from 1st January, 2019 for a period of 5 years at the 25th Annual General 
Meeting of the shareholders held on 10th May, 2019. 

His remuneration is revised to Rs 1,50,000/- PM with effect from 01.06.2019 till the remaining period 
of this tenure.

Except Mr A V Palaniswamy none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and 
their relatives has any interest, financially or otherwise, in the proposed resolution.

Your Board recommends that the variation of remuneration be confirmed by the members of the Company.

Agenda 5: Variation in Remuneration of Whole Time Director, Mr Jayaram Govindarajan

Mr Jayaram Govindarajan was appointed as Whole Time Director of the Company, at a remuneration 
of ` 1,00,000/- p.m. with effect from 14th December, 2018 for a period of 3 years at the 26th Annual 
General Meeting of the shareholders held on 23rd September, 2019. 

His remuneration is revised to Rs 1,50,000/- PM with effect from 01.06.2019 till the remaining period 
of this tenure.

Except Mr Jayaram Govindarajan none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 
and their relatives has any interest, financially or otherwise, in the proposed resolution.

Your Board recommends that the variation of remuneration be confirmed by the members of the Company.

The relevant particulars concerning the Directors as required are set out in the statement attached 
to the Notice.
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Details of Director seeking appointment/re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting

Name of the
Director Mr A V Palaniswamy Mrs. Panath 

Anitha
Jayaram 

Govindarajan R Alagar

Date of Birth 02.03.1942 27.01.1972 06.09.1979 25.10.1950
Date of Appointment 01.01.2019 14.02.2018 14.12.2018 14.08.2014
Qualification B E (Electrical) M.Com Degree in Industrial 

Relations and 
Computer Application 
Information Systems; 
MBA 

B. Com, ACS

Expertise in specific 
functional areas

A qualified engineer 
with more than 40 
years of experience 
in manufacturing 
technologies, 
expertise in achieving 
best production and 
marketing levels

She started her 
career in National 
Fittings Limited 
and held various 
positions over the 
past 20 years in 
manufacturing, 
marketing and 
administration.

He has over 15 years 
of extensive multi-
faceted experience 
in manufacturing, 
start-up management 
and operations across 
the world. His industry 
experience ranges 
from automotive 
engineering to health 
care.

He was employed 
himself in various 
companies for more 
than 10 years and 
now a Practicing 
Company Secretary 
for more than 25 
years. He is having 
immense knowledge 
in various Corporate 
Laws and in financial 
fields. 

Directorship held in other 
companies (excluding 
foreign companies and 
section 8 companies)

Haitima India Private 
Limited

NIL (i) Women Center and 
Hospitals Private Ltd
(ii) Center for Perinatal 
Care Private Ltd
(iii) Dark System India 
Private Ltd

Entrust Software 
& Services Private 
Limited

Memberships / 
Chairmanships of 
committees of the 
company (includes 
only Audit Committee 
and Stakeholders’ 
Relationship Committee.)

(i)	 Audit Committee
(ii)	 Shareholder 

Relationship 
Committee

(i)	 Stakeholders 
Relationship 
Committee

NIL (i) Audit Committee
(ii)	 Stakeholders 

Relationship 
Committee

Memberships/ 
Chairmanships of 
committees of the other 
public company (includes 
only Audit Committee 
and Stakeholders’ 
Relationship Committee.)

Nil NIL NIL NIL

Number of shares held in 
the company

30,92,093 Equity 
Shares

15,200 Equity 
Shares NIL NIL
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Twenty Seventh Annual Report together with the Audited
Balance Sheet & Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31.03.2020

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The operating results for the year 2019-2020 are given below :
	 (` in Lakhs)

Profit before Interest and Depreciation 	  
and Other adjustments		  566.32

Less :	 Interest 	 172.91
	 Depreciation 	 243.25	 416.16
			   ————
Net Profit before Tax		  150.16
Provision for Tax :
    Current Tax	 25.05
    MAT Credit	 (25.05)
    Deferred Tax (income) / expenses	 12.68
    IT for earlier year	 3.95
		  ———	 16.63			   ————
Net Profit after Tax	 	 133.53
Amount brought forward from previous year		  2848.18
Amount available for appropriation		  2981.71

Appropriations
Add : Transfer from Revaluation Reserve		  1.06
      MAT credit adjustment		  13.06
			   ————
Surplus carried over to Balance Sheet		  2995.83
Less : Dividend on Equity Shares		  136.25
 Dividend on Preference Shares		  36.00
 Dividend Distribution Tax	  	 35.33			   ————

	 Surplus carried over to Balance Sheet					     2788.25			   ————

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:

The Company’s gross income for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 was Rs. 5,791.48 lacs 
compared to Rs. 5,990.78 lacs in the previous year. The profit before tax for the Company is Rs. 150.16 
lacs as against Rs. 446.83 lacs in the previous year. The depreciation for the year is Rs.243.25 lacs 
compared to Rs.264.68 lacs in the previous year. After providing Taxation, the Company’s net profit 
stands at Rs.133.53 lacs against Rs.299.07 lacs in the previous year. 
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An amount of Rs 2788.25 lacs is to be carried over to Balance Sheet after appropriation of Dividend on 
Equity and Preference Shares including Dividend Tax for the financial year 2018-19.

The Net worth of the company is at Rs. 4970.51 lacs as on 31.03.2020 as against Rs. 5,031.50 lacs 
in the previous year.

DIVIDEND

The Company has not declared any dividend during the year under review due to the uncertainty of 
market conditions and the effect covid-19 impact on productivity

PERFORMANCE:

Company was under continued pressure on pricing due to low down of the economics and abnormally 
lower pricing from Chinese manufacturers both in international and in domestic markets,. Preferential duty 
structure to Chinese products has made it difficult to get better pricing in the domestic market. Increase 
in the input costs on labour and power has reduced the margin.

Company has completed the merger and amalgamation of the associated supply companies and the 
Company is taking steps to reduce general administrative over head costs.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

TRENDS & DEVELOPMENT

Sale in domestic market has been improving for the Company due to the emphasis on ‘Make in India” 
advocacy. 

Withdrawal of India from RCEP trade agreement discussions may help further to improve domestic 
market presence for the Company.

DIRECTORS 

Mrs Panath Anitha, Director, who retires by rotation, and being eligible, offered herself for reappointment.

Mr R Alagar, Director, being eligible, recommended by the Board for reappointment as Independent Director.

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Mr. A.V. Palaniswamy, Managing Director, Mrs Panath Anitha, Whole Time Director, Mr Jayaram 
Govindarajan, Whole Time Director, Mr. J. Saravanan, Chief Financial Officer and Mr. S. Aravinthan, 
Company Secretary of the Company are the Key Management Personnel as per the provisions of the 
Companies Act, and rules made there under.

The remuneration of Mr A V Palaniswamy, Manging Director and Mr Jayaram Govindarajan were revised 
and details of the same have been given in the explanatory statement.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

The company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 a statement containing salient 
features of the Financial Statements of your Company’s Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures in 
Form AOC-1 is attached to the Financial Statements of your Company as Annexure 1.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Your Directors further report that 

(i)	 in the preparation of annual accounts the applicable accounting standards have been followed and 
there were no material departures;

(ii)	 the accounting policies selected have been applied consistently, prudent judgments and estimates 
have been made to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at 31st March 
2020 and of the Profit of the company and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31.03.2020.

(iii)	 they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the 
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv)	 the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.

(v)	 the directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that 
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively Internal financial control 
means the policies and procedures adopted by the Company for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information.

(vi)	 the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

CODE OF CONDUCT

All Directors and senior management of the Company have affirmed Compliance with the Code of Conduct 
of National Fittings Limited for the financial Year ended 31st March 2020.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The Independent Directors have submitted their disclosures to the Board that they fulfill all the requirements 
as stipulated in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 so as to qualify themselves to be appointed 
as Independent Directors under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant rules.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS

During the year, 4 (Four) Board Meetings were convened and held, the details of which are given in 
Corporate Governance Report.

POLICY ON DIRECTOR’S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION INCLUDING CRITERIA FOR 
DETERMINING QUALIFICATIONS, POSITIVE ATTRIBUTES, INDEPENDENCE OF A DIRECTOR, KEY 
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL AND OTHER EMPLOYEES

The company shall have such person on the Board who complies with the requirements of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

Directors/KMPs shall be persons of sound integrity and honesty, apart from knowledge, experience etc 
in the respective fields.

Composition of the Board shall be in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. No 
person less than the age of 21 years shall be appointed as the director of the Board.
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The Executive Directors are paid with remuneration as approved by the members but are not paid sitting 
fees.

Independent directors are not entitled for ESOPs

Managing Director, Whole Time Director, Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer shall be the 
Key Management Personnel (KMPs) of the Company.

All persons who are Directors, KMPs, members of Senior Management and all the employees shall be 
abide by the code of conduct.

MANNER IN WHICH FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION HAS BEEN MADE BY THE BOARD OF ITS 
OWN PERFORMANCE AND THAT OF ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

1.	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board prepared and sent through its Chairman Draft 
feedback form for evaluation of the Board and independent directors.

2.	 Independent Directors at a meeting of themselves considered and evaluated the Board’s performance, 
performance of the Chairman and other non-independent Directors.

3.	 The Board subsequently evaluated performance of the Board, the Committees and Independent 
Directors.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Investments made by the Company under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under 
review are given in para 2.2 of Notes forming part of the financial statements.

There were no loans, guarantees made by the Company under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 
during the year.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES 

There were no materially significant related party transactions entered by the Company with its promoters, 
Directors, Key Management Personnel and other persons which may have a potential conflict with the 
interest of the Company.

All the related party transactions that were entered during the financial year were in the ordinary course 
of the business of the Company

All the related party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for approval. For the business 
transactions with the related parties which are of repetitive nature as well as for the normal business 
transactions which cannot be foreseen prior omnibus approval from the Audit Committee are obtained 
and accordingly required disclosures are made to the Committee on quarterly basis in terms of the 
approval of the Committee.

The Policy on materiality of related party transactions and also on dealing with the related party transactions 
as approved by the Audit Committee and Board of Directors is uploaded on the Company’s web-site and 
the link for the same is https://www.nationalfitting.com.

The particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with the related parties made under Section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are furnished in Annexure – 2 and are attached to this report.
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SHARES 

There was no issue of fresh Equity Shares during the financial year. No Bonus Shares were issued. 
The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares and not provided any Employee Stock Option 
Scheme. The Company has not Bought Back any of its securities during the year under review.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has implemented adequate procedures and internal controls which provide reasonable 
assurance regarding reliability of financial reporting and preparation of financial statements.

The Company also assures that internal controls are operating effectively.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company which 
have occurred between the end of the financial year and the date of the report.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

Potential risk for the business of the Company and steps to be adopted by the Company to handle the 
risks has been reviewed regularly. Following are the few risks and the methods to be adopted by the 
Company to handle them.

1)	 Manpower

	 Company enjoys good relationship with labour, supply side vendors and understanding customers

	 Company will face severe shortage of manpower due to the absence of migrant labor and strict 
restrictions on local labor from other districts because of Covid-19 curfew. Company is developing 
more and more tools and dies to operate the automatic machines and introduction of more locally 
available women labor force.

2)	 Market Risk

	 Due to shrinking market in the world for the products manufactured by the Company, manufacturers 
from China is expected to dump their huge production capacities in the markets where the Company 
is having its presence. Pricing pressure will continue to exist for the foreseeable future.

	 Company is taking steps to make the merged entities more efficient and improve the productivity 
with reduced manpower and power costs to maintain the market share

	 Company will take steps to improve the market for the newly developed water pump business which 
is also under slow down due to Covid – 19 crisis.

3)	 Exchange Risk

	 Company is exporting 70% of its products and expects a very volatile exchange rate for US dollars 
during the Current Year. RBI maintains a flexible rate against a basket of currencies and rupee is 
changing on a daily basis and as a result Company’s revenue changes on a daily basis for the 
same quantum of exports.

	 Company has taken steps to procure all of its inputs for the production in the domestic market and 
is not subject to variations in input costs. Also more of the production is being sold in the domestic 
market to reduce the risk of the exchange rate changes. 
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

A Board level Committee of CSR has been constituted and the Board has adopted a CSR Policy as 
recommended by the Committee.

The company spent Rs 4.61 lacs in this financial year as CSR activities. 

The Annual Report on the Company’s CSR activities is furnished in Annexure 3 and attached to this report.

In addition to annual CSR spends, your Company has committed to contribute towards tackling the 
unprecedented health and humanitarian crisis arising from the COVID-19 pandemic outbreak.

EXTRACTS OF ANNUAL RETURN 

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with corresponding 
rules, the extract of the Annual Return as at March, 2020 in Form MGT 9 is hosted on the website 
www.nationalfitting.com

LEGAL COMPLIANCE 

There were no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting 
the going concern status and company’s operations in future.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Your Company is in compliance with the Corporate Governance guidelines, as laid out in the Securities 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI 
Listing Regulations).

All the Directors and the Senior Management personnel have affirmed in writing their compliance with 
and adherence to the Code of Conduct adopted by the Company.

The annual report of the Company contains a certificate by the Chief Executive Officer and Managing 
Director in terms of SEBI Listing Regulations on the compliance declarations received from the Directors 
and the Senior Management personnel.

The Statutory Auditors of the Company have examined the requirements of Corporate Governance with 
reference to SEBI Listing Regulations and have certified the compliance, as required under SEBI Listing 
Regulations. The Certificate in this regard is attached as Annexure 4 to this Report.

The Chief Executive Officer / Chief Financial Officer (CEO/CFO) certification as required under SEBI 
Listing Regulations is attached as Annexure 5 to this Report.

Related Party disclosures/transactions are detailed in Note 2.27 of the Notes to the financial statement.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT 

Company has a policy on prohibition, prevention and redressal of sexual harassment of women at work 
place and matters connected therewith. 

The Company has constituted an Internal Control Committee for prevention of sexual harassment of 
women at work place.

During the year ended 31st March, 2020, no complaint was received under the policy.
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TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND 

The Company has unclaimed dividend amounting to Rs. 85,91,410/-

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, unclaimed dividend of 
Rs 2,03,480/, which remained unpaid or unclaimed for a period of 7 years and have been transferred 
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund in this financial year.

The details of the unpaid and unclaimed dividend lying with the Company have been uploaded on the 
website of Ministry of Company Affairs.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013, 82,740 equity shares 
accompanying dividend which remained unpaid or unclaimed for a period of 7 years have been transferred 
by the Company to the Investor Education and Protection Fund in this financial year.

Unclaimed dividend of Rs 13,68,180/-, which pertaining to the equity shares transferred by the Company 
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund have been transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund in this financial year.

DEPOSITS 

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the financial year.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

The information required under Section 197 of the Act read with rule 5(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given below:

(i) & (ii) The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median and mean remuneration of the 
employees of the company for the financial year and the percentage increase in remuneration of each 
director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the 
financial year:

Name of Directors/Key Management Personnel
Ratio to Median 
Remuneration

(times)

% Increase / 
Decrease in 

Remuneration

Mr A V Palaniswamy, Managing Director  9.19 -18.87

Mr Jayaram Govindarajan 7.48  29.63

Mr. Dhananjayan 0.09 0.00

Mr. Selvakumar 0.34 -3.03

Mr R Alagar 1.12 47.69

Mrs A PanathAnitha 1.83 4.61

Mr J Saravanan (Chief Financial Officer) 3.46 4.44

Mr S Aravinthan (Company Secretary) 2.84 5.12

iii)	 The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 15.89%

iv)	 The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company: 116

v)	 Explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and company performance:
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	 On an average, employees received an increase of 7.41% during the financial year 2019-20. 
The remuneration components include a fair proportion of fixed and variable pay. The increase 
in remuneration is in line with the market. In order to ensure that remuneration reflects Company 
performance, the performance pay is also linked to organization performance, apart from an individual’s 
performance.

(In Lacs)

Aggregate remuneration of key managerial personnel (KMP) in FY 2019-20 58,03,000
Revenue 56,85,09,864
Remuneration of KMPs (as % of revenue) 1.02
Profit before Tax (PBT) 1,50,16,007
Remuneration of KMP (as % of PBT) 38.64

vii)	 Variations in the market capitalization of the Company, price earnings ratio as at the closing date 
of the current financial year and previous financial year:

	 (In Lacs)

Particulars As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019 % decrease
Closing price of share at BSE (Rs.) 21.90 113.05 -80.63
Market Capitalisation (Rs.) 1989.22 10268.53 -80.63
Price Earnings ratio 14.90 34.34 -56.61
Net worth 4970.51 5031.50 -1.21

viii)	 Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial 
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial 
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for 
increase in the managerial remuneration:

	 The average increase in salaries of employees other than managerial personnel in 2019-20 was 
20.83%. Percentage increase in the managerial remuneration for the year was 4.93%

ix)	 Comparison of the each remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of 
the company:

Mr. A V 
Palaniswamy 

Managing Director

Mr.Jayram 
Govindarajan 
Whole Time 

Director

Mrs. A Panath 
Anitha, 

Woman Director

Mr. J Saravanan 
Chief Financial 

Officer

Mr. S Aravinthan 
Company 
Secretary

Remuneration in 
FY 2019-20 21,50,000 17,50,000 4,29,000 8,09,000 6,65,000

Revenue 56,85,09,864 56,85,09,864 56,85,09,864 56,85,09,864 56,85,09,864

Remuneration as 
% of Revenue 0.38 0.47 0.08 0.14 0.12

Profit before Tax 
(PBT) 1,50,16,007 1,50,16,007 1,50,16,007 1,50,16,007 1,50,16,007

Remuneration (as 
% of PBT) 14.31 11.65 2.85 5.39 4.43
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x)	 The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors: There are 
no variable components of remuneration paid to the directors.

xi)	 The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not 
directors but receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the year: Nil

xii)	 Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company.

	 The Company affirms that remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

The information required under Section 197 of the Act read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2015 are given below:

During the period under review, there was no employee drawing remuneration in excess of the limits 
prescribed under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

STATUTORY AUDITORS 

M/s V Krish & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Chennai were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the 
Company from the conclusion of the 25th Annual General Meeting held on 10.05.2019 until the conclusion 
of 28th Annual General Meeting.

The report of the Statutory Auditors for financial year ended 31st March, 2020 is given along with the 
Financial Statements which is annexed to and forms part of this report. 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has appointed Mr M R L Narasimha, 
B.Com, FCS, Practicing Company Secretary (Cop No: 799) as the Secretarial Auditor for the financial 
year 2019-20 whose report on 30th June, 2020 is attached separately to this report. Annexure 6.

EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS OR QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE REMARKS 
OR DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS AND THE PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY IN 
THEIR REPORTS

There were no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Statutory Auditors and there 
are no qualifications in the Secretarial Audit Report of the Practicing Company Secretary.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

a)	 Company has proposed to replace the older generation melting equipment in one of the merged 
entity with a latest melting equipment to reduce the cost of manufacturing components

b)	 More tools are being developed for the automatic molding machines in the merged entity units to 
reduce power requirement.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Company has taken steps to develop all the tools and dies in house by introducing solid modeling 
computer software and latest vertical machining center.

These dies will be for the automatic high production machines at the merged entities.
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Computer generated models for tooling, data collection and manufacturing processes have been introduced 
to improve productivity.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Foreign exchange inflow	 (actual)	 : Rs. 38,94,44,059/-

Foreign exchange used	 (actual)	 : Rs.       50,61,022/-

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

Relationship with the employees/labor was cordial during the year under review.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Your Directors take this opportunity to thank M/s. Bank of India for the support extended during the period. 
Your Directors also wish to thank all the suppliers, employees, Government Departments/Agencies and 
others for their valuable contribution and assistance during the year.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Place	 :	 Coimbatore	 Sd/- A.V. PALANISWAMY	 Sd/- JAYARAM GOVINDARAJAN
Date	 :	 30.06.2020	 DIN No. 01817391	 DIN No. 02178416 
			   Managing Director	 Director
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ANNEXURE 1

Form No. AOC – 1
Pursuant to first proviso to Sub-Section (3) of Section 129 of the Companies Act 2013 

read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014

Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of Subsidiaries / Associate 
Companies and Joint venture

Since the Company is not having any subsidiary / Associate Companies and Joint venture disclosure under 
this section is not applicable:

ANNEXURE 2

Form No. AOC – 2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and 

Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015)

A.	 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis

	 There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered in to during the year ended March 31, 
2020, which were not at arm’s length basis.

B.	 Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

	 Since no material related party contract / transaction exists, disclosure under this section is not applicable.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Place	 :	 Coimbatore	 Sd/- A.V. PALANISWAMY	 Sd/- JAYARAM GOVINDARAJAN
Date	 :	 30.06.2020	 DIN No. 01817391	 DIN No. 02178416 
			   Managing Director	 Director
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Annexure 3

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

1)	 A Brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy:

	 At National Fittings Limited CSR shall remain a priority along with business activities. The Company 
shall take steps to ensure development of people and communities.

	 The Company’s CSR projects focused on

	 i)	 Environmental care

	 ii)	 Needs of the local community

	 iii)	 Energy and water conservation

	 iv)	 Promotion of education and employment opportunities

	 v)	 Primary and preventive health care.

2)	 Composition of CSR Committee:

	 A Board level Committee of CSR has been constituted with Mr Chenniappan Selvakumar as the 
Chairman, Mr A V Palaniswamy and Mr Jayaram Govindarajan as members. The Board has adopted 
a CSR Policy as recommended by the Committee.

3)	 Average Net Profit of the Company for the last three financial years for the purpose of 
computation of CSR: Rs 625.64 lacs

4)	 Prescribed CSR Expenditure for 2020-21 (2% of the Average Net Profit): Rs. 12.51 lacs

5)	 Details of CSR spent during the financial year: (Rupees in lacs)

	 a)	 Total  amount to be spent for the financial year:	 Rs 22.20

	 b)	 Unspent in Previous year	 Rs. 7.05

	 c)	 Total  amount to be spent	 Rs 29.69

	 d)	 Amount spent this  financial year	 Rs. 4.61

	 e)	 Amount unspent, if any	 Rs. 25.08
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	 f)	 Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year

Sl 
No

CSR Project /
activity identified

Section in 
which the 
project is 
covered

Projects or 
programs (Local 

area or other) 
(State/District 

where they have 
been undertaken)

Amount 
outlay

(budget) 
Project or 
programs 

wise

Cumulative 
expenditure 

up to the 
reporting 

period

Amount 
Spent (Direct 

or through 
implementing 

agency)

1 Community 
Development

Schedule 
VII (ii) Pan India 1,50,000/- 1,50,000/- Direct

2 Community 
Development

Schedule 
VII (vi) Pan India 3,00,000/- 3,00,000/- Direct

3 Community 
Development

Schedule 
VII (i) Local Community 11,713/- 11,713/- Direct

Total 4,61,713/- 4,61,713/-

	 g)	� Reason for not spending the amount: The Company earmark a new project for constructing a 
school room building at Kaniyur Village. As some approval is pending it is being delayed.

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT BY THE CSR COMMITTEE

“In accordance with the Rule 9 of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 we 
hereby confirm that the implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy, is in compliance with the CSR 
objectives and Policy of the Company.”

Place	 :	 Coimbatore	 Sd/- A.V. PALANISWAMY	 Sd/- CHENNIAPPAN SELVAKUMAR
Date	 :	 30.06.2020	 Managing Director	 Chairman, CSR Committee
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Annexure 4

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

I PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company committed to develop, manufacture and supply effective products to meet the customer 
requirements

Striving towards continuous improvement in total quality and keeping abreast of the latest technologies have 
been enabling the Company to achieve its goal.

The focus on training and development of the employees’ skills has well bearing results in the goal attainment.

The ultimate benefit of these efforts has been aimed in enrichment of the value to the shareholders. The 
environment and Community has been well recognized while moving towards the goal.

The Company is in compliance with the requirements stipulated under Regulation 17 to 27 read with Schedule 
V and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘’Listing Regulations’’), as applicable, 
with regard to corporate governance, the disclosure requirements of which are given below:

II BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

As on 31st March, 2020 the Company had six Directors consisting of three Executive Directors including one 
Woman Director and three Non-Executive Independent Directors.

The Managing Director is an Executive and Promoter Director.

The Board’s composition is in compliance with the requirements of Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

In the opinion of the Board the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified under the SEBI 
Regulations and are independent of the management.

Core competencies of Industry knowledge, technical skills, behavioral competencies, strategic expertise, 
communication, risk management as identified by the Board of Directors as required in the context of the 
business for the Board to function effectively is available with the Board.

A certificate from the Company Secretary in Practice that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company 
have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as director of companies by the SEBI/
Ministry of Company Affairs or any such statutory authority has been obtained.
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Board Meetings, Attendance of Directors and other Directorships held by them

The Board meetings are generally held at the Corporate Office. The Board meets at least once in a quarter 
and additional meetings are held, when necessary. The agenda, explanatory notes and related papers 
are circulated at least seven days prior to the date of the Board meeting for consideration by the Board. 
Adequate information is circulated as part of the agenda papers and also placed at the table to enable the 
Board to take an informed decision.

The Board periodically reviews the compliance of all applicable laws by the Company as well as steps taken 
by the Company to rectify instances of non-compliances, if any. Committees of the Board usually meet on the 
day of the Board meeting or whenever the need arises for transacting the business. The recommendations 
of the Committees are placed before the Board for necessary approval.

The Board met 4 (four times) during the year and the gap between two meetings did not exceed the 
stipulated 120 days. The said meetings were held on 30.05.2019, 10.08.2019, 14.11.2019 and 13.02.2020. 
The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings.

Composition of Board of Directors

Name and Designation 
of Directors Category

Number of Board 
Meeting during  

2019-20

Whether 
attended 
last AGM

No of Directorships 
in other Companies

No of Committee 
positions held 

on other Public 
companies

Held Attended Yes/No Chairman Director Chairman Member

A. V. Palaniswamy 
(Managing Director)

Promoter – 
Executive Director 4 4 Yes Nil 1 Nil Nil

R Alagar Non Executive - 
Independent Director 4 4 Yes Nil 1 Nil Nil

A Panath Anitha 
(Whole Time Director)

Executive - Woman 
Director 4 4 Yes Nil Nil Nil Nil

Jayaram Govindarajan 
(Whole Time Director) Executive Director 4 4 Yes Nil 3 Nil Nil

Arjunaraj 
Dhananjayan**

Non Executive - 
Independent Director 4 1 No Nil 1 Nil 1

Chenniappan 
Selvakumar**

Non Executive - 
Independent Director 4 4 Yes Nil 1 Nil Nil

**Mr Arjunaraj Dhananjayan is the Non-Executive Independent Director in Shiva Texyarn Limited.

None of the Directors are related to each other. For the purpose of membership / Chairmanship in committees, 
only the Audit Committee and Shareholder’s Relationship Committee are considered.
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The minimum information as required under Part A of Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is made available to the Board.

The Board has complete access to all information pertaining to the Company inter-alia the following 
information viz 

•	 Annual operating plans, budgets.

•	 Quarterly/annual results.

•	 Minutes of the meetings.

•	 Material default in financial obligations and substantial non-payment for goods sold.

•	 Sale of material nature, of investments, subsidiaries, assets which are not in the normal course of 
business.

•	 Recruitment and remuneration of senior officers including appointment and removal of CFO or Company 
Secretary.

•	 Significant labour problems and developments.

•	 Fatal and serious accidents & material effluents and pollution problems.

•	 Any issue which involves pubic or product liability claims of substantial nature and judgement/order

•	 Materially important show cause, demand, prosecution and penalty notices

•	 Non-compliance of regulatory, statutory nature or listing requirements or shareholders service such as 
payment of dividend, share transfers etc

Information is regularly provided to the Board, wherever applicable and materially significant information 
either as part of agenda papers well in advance of the Board Meetings or tabled in the course of Board 
meetings or tabled before the appropriate committees of the Board.

None of the Non-Executive Directors hold shares in the Company as on 31st March, 2020

III AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee plays on important role in overseeing the internal control and the financial reporting 
system of the Company. The Company has an independent Audit Committee constituted in line with the 
provisions of Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 read with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013

The Audit Committee comprising of four members including three Non-Executive Independent Directors. 
The Audit Committee at present comprised of Mr R Alagar, who is a Fellow member of Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India, as its Chairman, Mr A V Palaniswmay, Mr Arjunaraj Dhananjayan, who is a Fellow 
member of Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and Mr Chenniappan Selvakumar as its members. All 
members of the Audit Committee have financial and accounting knowledge. The Company Secretary acts 
as the Secretary of the Committee.

The Committee met 4 (four) times during the year on 30.05.2019, 10.08.2019, 14.11.2019 and 13.02.2020 
The time gap between any two meetings was less than four months. Necessary quorum was present for all 
the meetings.
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	 Attendance Record of Audit Committee

Name of the Member Category Status
No of meetings

Held Attended
R Alagar Independent Chairman 4 4

A V Palaniswamy Non-Independent Member 4 4

Arjunaraj Dhananjayan Independent Member 4 1

Chenniappan Selvakumar Independent Member 4 4

The functions of the Audit Committee include: 

•	 Overseeing Financial Reporting Process

•	 Reviewing periodic financial results, financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

•	 Discussion and review of periodic audit reports 

•	 Discussion with external Auditors about the scope of audit including the observations of Auditors

•	 Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance

•	 Approving Internal Audit Plans and reviewing efficacy of the function

•	 Approval or modification of transaction of the company with related parties

•	 Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investment

•	 Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems

•	 Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company 

•	 Carrying on any other functions as are mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee

Audit Committee is empowered to investigate any activity within its terms of reference, seek any information 
from any employee, obtain outside legal, or other professional service, secure attendance of outsiders with 
relevant expertise, if it considers necessary

IV NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

The Company has a Remuneration Committee consisting of Mr R Alagar, Independent Director, Mr Arjunaraj 
Dhananjayan, Independent Director and Mr Chenniappan Selvakumar, Independent Director as members.

Functions of the remuneration committee are:

l	� Setting the level and composition of remuneration which is reasonable and attractive to retain and 
motivate quality directors

l	� Monitoring the performance and remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other 
employees of the Company.

(i)	 Remuneration of Directors

The Remuneration of Whole Time Director is determined by the Remuneration Committee consists of 
only Non-Executive Directors. The recommendation of the Remuneration Committee are considered and 
approved by the Board subject to the approval of the Shareholders.

The Company has not paid any remuneration to any of its Non Executive Directors, except the Sitting Fees 
for attending the meetings of the Board of Directors and Committees.
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(ii)	 Details of Remuneration paid to Directors during the financial year ended 31st March, 2020

Director Salary Perquisites and 
other benefits Sitting Fees Total

A V Palaniswamy 
(Managing Director) 21,50,000 1,71,666 — 23,21,666

Panath Anitha 
(Whole Time Director) 4,29,000 — — 4,29,000

Jayram Govindarajan 
(Whole Time Director 17,50,000 3,46,243 — 20,96,243

R Alagar — - 2,62,500 2,62,500

Arjunaraj Dhananjayan — — 20,000 20,000

Chenniappan 
Selvakumar — — 80,000 80,000

Total 43,29,000 5,17,909 3,62,500 52,09,409

None of the Non-Executive Directors have any material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the 
Company

V STAKE HOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

The Shareholders Relationship Committee is headed by Mr. R Alagar, Non-Executive Independent Director.

Mr. S Aravinthan, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer.

The Committee monitors 

•	 Redressal of complaints received from shareholders/investors with respect to 

	 *	 transfer of shares

	 *	 non-receipt of dividend

	 *	 non-receipt of Annual Report, Notices

	 *	 change of address for correspondence etc

The Company has appointed M/s S K D C Consultants Limited, Coimbatore as Share Transfer Agent. 

*	 Transfers/transmission

•	  Issue of new share certificates after spilt or consolidation/duplicate share certificates

•	  Requests for dematerialization of share certificates are approved/confirmed

•	 Issue and allot shares subject to the approval of the Board

•	 Report about top shareholders

•	 Share holding pattern

•	 All other matters incidental or related to shares, debentures and other securities of the Company, as the 
case may be, are handled within the stipulated time through the Share Transfer Agent. 
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There were no complaints received for this financial year. No instrument of transfers was pending on 31st 
March, 2020. All the communication received from shareholders was satisfactorily complied with, within the 
stipulated time.

Investor complaints on non-receipt of dividend, annual reports etc forwarded by SEBI are periodically 
resolved and uploaded in SCORES website (SEBI Complaints Redressal System) and no complaints were 
pending during the year under review.

During the year the Committee was met 4 times.

VI CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

A Board level Committee of CSR has been constituted with Mr Chenniappan Selvakumar as the Chairman, 
Mr A V Palaniswamy and Mr Jayaram Govindarajan as members. The Board has adopted a CSR Policy as 
recommended by the Committee.

One meeting of the members of CSR Committee was held during the financial year on 30.05.2019 and the 
members attended.

VII INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING

During the year, a separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on 13th February 2020 to review the 
performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole. The process for evaluation of Board 
performance, Non-Independent Non-Executive Directors and the Board Chairman is detailed in the Board’s 
Report.

VIII GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Annual General Meeting

DATE, TIME AND VENUE OF THE LAST THREE YEARS

Financial Year Date Time Venue

2016-17 12.08.2017 10.30 AM
S F No: 112, Madhapur Road, Kaniyur 
Village, Karumathampatti (via), 
Coimbatore - 641659

2017-18 10.05.2019 10.30 AM

2018-19 23.09.2019 10.30 AM

Extra-Ordinary General Meeting

There was no Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held during the year. 

Special Resolutions 

*	 No special resolution was passed at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 12.08.2017 
and 23.09.2019

*	 At the AGM dated 10.05.2019, 3 (three) Special Resolutions were passed i) re-appointment of 
Mr A V Palaniswamy as Managing Director ii) borrowing powers u/s 180 (1)(a) and iii) creation of 
charges on the assets of the company u/s 180 (1)(c) 
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Postal Ballot

There was no business transacted at the AGMs requiring a special resolution passing through postal ballot.

Means of Communication 

The Company follows a robust process of communicating with its stakeholders. The Company uses multiple 
channels of communications viz. on-line portals of stock exchanges and SEBI, annual reports, website, 
newspapers, etc.

The quarterly unaudited and annual audited financial results are disseminated to the BSE Limited, where the 
shares of the Company are listed, within the time limit prescribed in the SEBI (LODR) Regulations. 

They are also published in the English/Hindi newspapers having Country wide circulation, i.e., Financial 
Express and also in newspapers having wide circulation in the Tamil Nadu, where registered office of the 
Company is situated. 

The said results are also posted on the Company’s website, i.e., www.nationalfitting.com

The Company also communicates the dates of Board meetings and General meetings and e-voting, etc. as 
per the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations through Stock Exchanges, 
newspaper publications and by posting on the Company’s website.

IX DISCLOSURES

Related Party Transactions 

The disclosures in compliance with the Accounting Standard on “Related Party Disclosure” are given at Note 
No. 2.27 of the Financial Statements.

No materially significant related party transactions, having potential conflict with the interests of the Company 
have been entered into during the Financial Year 2019-20

The Related Party Transactions Policy is posted at http://www.nationalfitting.com/investors/policies/

Compliance 

The Company is fully compliant with the applicable mandatory requirements of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
and also with other regulatory requirements on capital markets. 

No penalties/strictures have been imposed on it by the Stock Exchanges, SEBI or any statutory authority on 
any matter related to capital markets during last three years. 

The Company is complying with all the corporate governance requirements specified in Regulations 17 to 27 
and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations.

Adoption of non-mandatory requirements 

In terms of Regulation 27(1) read with Part E of Schedule II of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, the Company has 
adopted the following discretionary requirements – 

1)	 The Chairman of the Board is an Executive Director who is entitled to managerial remuneration as 
approved by the Shareholders.
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2)	 The Company regularly does statutory filings as required under SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges and also updates the website 
of the Company on regular basis. The financial results as when approved by the Board is hosted in the 
investor column of the Company’s website from which any shareholders can easily access and obtain 
the requisite information on the Company.

3)	 There are no Audit qualifications during the year under review

4)	 The Company has appointed separate persons to the post of Chairman, Managing Director and 
Chief Executive Officer as under: a) Mr Jayaram Govindarajan – Chairman and Whole Time Director 
b) Mr A V Palaniswamy – Managing Director

5)	 The Internal Auditors’ Report is placed before the Audit Committee during its quarterly meetings and 
Internal Auditors has full access to the Audit Committee to report any findings during their audit.

Policies of the Company

Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has framed Whistle Blower Mechanism and the same is posted at http://www.nationalfitting.
com/investors/policies/

All Stakeholders, Directors and Employees can have the direct access to the Audit Committee Chairman in 
appropriate cases.

Policy on Material Subsidiary Companies 

The Company is not having any material unlisted subsidiary. 

Hence reviewing the financial statements, the investment made by the unlisted subsidiary, circulating 
minutes are not arise.

The Company has a Policy on Material Subsidiary Companies and the same is posted on the Company’s 
website at http://www.nationalfitting.com/investors/policies/

Policy on determination of materiality for disclosures 

The Company has adopted a policy on determination of materiality for disclosures to facilitate timely and 
adequate disclosure of material information or events which are unpublished and price sensitive, have a 
bearing on performance or operations of the Company and the same is posted on the Company’s website at 
http://www.nationalfitting.com/investors/policies/

Policy for preservation of documents

The Company has adopted a policy for preservation of documents to preserve Documents /Records 
maintained by the Company either in Physical Mode or Electronic Mode and the same is posted on the 
Company’s website at http://www.nationalfitting.com/investors/policies/

Code of Conduct

The Company has laid down a Code of Conduct for its members and Senior Management Personnel of the 
Company. This Code of Conduct is available on the website of the Company, www.nationalfitting.com.
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The members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of 
Conduct applicable to them during the year ended March, 31, 2020

The Managing Director has affirmed to the Board that this Code of Conduct has been complied by all the 
Board Members and Senior Management Personnel.

Code for Prevention of Insider Trading Practices

In compliance with the SEBI Regulation on Prevention of Insider Trading, the Company has instituted a 
comprehensive Code of Conduct and Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished 
Price Sensitive Information for its management and staff. 

The code lays down guidelines, which advises them on procedures to be followed and disclosures to be 
made, while dealing with the shares of the Company and cautioning them of the consequences of violations. 

Dealings in Company’s shares by the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have been 
reported to the Board of Directors periodically.

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report

A qualified Practicing Company Secretary carried out a share capital audit to reconcile the total admitted 
equity share capital with the National Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”) and the Central Depository 
Services Limited (“CDSL”) and the total issued and listed equity share capital. 

The audit report confirms that the total issued/paid-up capital is in agreement with the total number of shares 
in physical form and the total number of dematerilaised shares held with NSDL and CDSL.

Disclosure of accounting treatment in preparation of Financial Statements 

The accounting treatment(s) in preparation of Financial Statements is/are the same as prescribed in the 
Accounting Standards.

CEO and CFO certification 

The CEO and CFO certificate on the Financial Statements for the financial year 2019-20 is attached at the 
end of the report.

X GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year 2019-20

Date	 :	 September 30, 2020

Time	 :	 10.30 a.m. 

Venue	 :	 Registered Office at 112, Madhapur Road, Kaniyur Village, Coimbatore - 641 659
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Financial Year 

The financial year followed by the Company is from 1st April to 31st March.

Date of Book Closure/ Record Date

24th September, 2020 to 30th September, 2020

Listing

The Company’s equity shares continue to be listed on the BSE Limited, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal 
Street, Mumbai - 400001 (Code: 531289). 

The Company has paid the listing fees for the financial year 2019-20 to BSE Limited

Stock Market Data 

The market price data as per quotations of BSE Limited i.e., high, low and close during each month 
during the financial year 2019-20 

Month No of shares traded High Low

April 2019 82,049 120.00 97.25

May 2019 43,146 116.00 92.00

June 2019 96,209  98.50 58.00

July 2019 55,844  68.80 44.20

August 2019 56,038  55.50 41.10

September 2019 44,699  58.00 43.10

October 2019  72,962  50.40 40.10

November 2019 83,239  45.85 36.00

December 2019 58,722  40.00 26.20

January 2020 75,209  42.95 29.00

February 2020 1,46,056  33.00 23.10

March 2020 77,031  26.85 20.00

Share Transfer Agents: M/s. SKDC Consultants Limited, Coimbatore.

Share Transfer System: All shares have been transferred and returned within 30 days from the date of 
lodgment, provided the necessary documents were in order.
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Shareholding as on March, 31, 2020:

a.	 Distribution of shareholding as on 31.03.2020 

Shareholding Range No of Holders % of Holders No of Shares % of Shares

1 - 500 4201 79.43 616252 6.79

501 – 1000 521 9.85 402805 4.44

1001 – 2000 275 5.20 399036 4.39

2001 – 3000 110 2.08 289985 3.19

3001 – 4000 31 0.59 109700 1.21

4001 – 5000 21 0.40 96642 1.05

5001 – 10000 51 0.96 354761 3.91

10000 above 79 1.49 6814001 75.02

Total 5289 100.00 9083182 100.00

b. Category wise shareholding pattern as on 31.03.2020

Category No. of Shares %

a. Promoters holdings

1. Promoters

Indian Promoters — —

Foreign Promoters 30,92,093 34.04

2. Person acting in concert Nil Nil

Sub Total 30,92,093 34.04

B. Non-Promoters

3. Institutional investors

a) Mutual Funds and UTI 500 0.01

b) Bank, Financial Institutions, Insurance companies 
(Central / State Government Institutions / Non-Gov-
ernment Institutions) 100 0.00

c) FIIs — —

Sub Total 600 0.01
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4. Others

a) Directors and Relatives 7,01,071 7.72

b) Private Corporate Bodies 5,11,993 5.64

c) Indian Public 37,24,746 41.01

d) NRI-NRE / NRI-NRO/OCBs 6,99,072 7.70

e) Any other (HUF) 1,46,547 1.61

f) Any other (IEPF) 2,07,060 2.28

Sub total 59,90,489 65.96

Grand total 90,83,182 100

a.	 Top ten equity shareholders of the Company as on March, 31, 2020

S L 
No Name of the Share holder Number of equity 

shares held
Percentage of 

holding

1 Kumudha Palaniswamy 6,85,871 7.55

2 Mina Pruthviraj Parikh 1,88,868 2.08

3 P Shunmugavelu 1,75,707 1.93

4 Prithviraj Somchand Parikh 1,43,430 1.58

5 Krishnaveni Thangavel 1,38,945 1.53

6 Him Kanchan Impex Private Limited 1,29,729 1.43

7 Pravin Chandra Batavia 1,25,000 1.38

8 Amoha Traders Private Limited 1,20,035 1.32

9 Rajeswara Rao Yanamadala 1,13,334 1.25

10 Euclid Wealth Management LLP 1,00,000 1.10

19,20,919 21.14

b.	 Dematerialisation of Shares: Trading in the Company’s shares in dematerialised form has been 
made compulsory. The Company entered into an agreement with the Depositories NSDL and CDSL for 
dematerialised form of shares and the Company provides option to members for dematerialisation. All 
requests for dematerialisation of shares are processed and confirmed through the Electronic Agent and the 
concerned depository.
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Dematerialization of shares and Liquidity

Total No. of Shares 90,83,182 Equity shares of ` 10/- each

 Physical Shares 15,32,958 (16.88%)

Dematerialized

Central Depository Securities Limited 44,84,496 (49.37%)

National Securities Depository Limited 30,65,728 (33.75%)

e.	 The Company has not issued any GDR/ADRs/warrants or any convertible instruments in the past and so on 
March, 31, 2020, the Company does not have any outstanding GDR/ADRs/warrants or any convertible instruments

Investors Help Desk

Share transfer and all other investor related activities are attended to and processed at the company’s 
Registered Office and at the Office of the Share Transfer Agent, as necessary.

For lodgment of transfer deeds and any other documents or for any grievances/ complaints, kindly contact 
at the following address:

(a)   M/s. SKDC Consultants Ltd.,
Kanapathy Towers, 3rd Floor,
1391/A-1, Sathy Road,
Ganapathy
Coimbatore - 641 006
Ph : 0422 - 6549995, 2539835

The Compliance Officer
National Fittings Limited
SF No. 112, Madhapur Road, Kaniyur
Karumathampatti 
Coimbatore - 641 659 
Ph : 9943293000 / 9943993001

Investor Education and Protection Fund 

During 2019-20 Rs 2,03,480/- and 82,740 Equity Shares have been transferred to Investor Education and 
Protection Fund.

Plant Location: 

1)	 Kaniyur Finishing Division:112, Madhapur Road, Kaniyur Village, Coimbatore, Tamilnadu - 641659

2)	 Thekkalur Foundry Division: S F No: 462/2, Vadugapalayam Road, Thekkalur Post, Avanashi Taluk, 
Tirupur, Tamilnadu - 641654

3)	 Dindigul Foundry Division: 630/1, Natham Road, Reddiapatti Post, Dindigul, Tamilnadu - 624003

4)	 Vedasandur Foundry Division: E-4, Dindigul Engineering Cluster, E-Chithour Village, Vedasandhur 
Taluk, Dindigul, Tamilnadu - 624174
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AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To

The Members of National Fittings Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by National Fittings Limited (the 
Company), for the year ended 31st March 2020, as stipulated in Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 pursuant to the listing 
agreement of the said Company with BSE Limited

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our 
examination was limited to a review of procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for 
ensuring compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression 
of opinion on the financial statements of the Company

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, we certify 
that the Company has compiled with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Chapter IV  
of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 pursuant to the listing agreement of the said Company with BSE Limited

We further state that this certificate is neither as assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of 
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company

	 For V Krish & Associates 
Chartered Accountants, 

Firm’s Registration No. 01452 S
	 Sd/- B. SATHISHKUMAR
Place	 :	 COIMBATORE	 Partner 
Date 	 :	 30.06.2020 	 Membership No. 218445
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Annexure 6

Compliance Certificate by Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Under 
Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 
2015

We, A V Palaniswamy, Managing Director of National fittings Limited and J Saravanan, Chief Financial 
Officer of National Fittings Limited, certify that

A.	� We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 
2020 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

	 (1)	� These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading;

	 (2)	� These statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity‘s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B.	� There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the listed entity during 
the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the listed entity‘s code of conduct.

C.	� C.	 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting 
and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the listed entity pertaining 
to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the 
design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken 
or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

D.	 We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee

	 (1)	 Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

	 (2)	� Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed 
in the notes to the financial statements; and

	 (3)	� Instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, 
of the management or an employee having a significant role in the listed entity‘s internal control 
system over financial reporting.

Place	 :	 COIMBATORE	 Sd/- A V Palaniswamy	 Sd/- J Saravanan 
Date 	 :	 30.06.2020	 Managing Director	  Chief Financial Officer
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Annexure 7

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members, 
National Fittings Limited 
[CIN: L29199TZ1993PLC008034] 
SFNO: 112, Madhapur Road 
Kaniyur Village, Sulur TK 
Karumathampatti (Via) - 641659

I have conducted a Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and adherence  
to good corporate practices by M/s. National Fittings Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). I have 
conducted the Secretarial Audit in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
Company’s corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion there on.

I am issuing this report based on my verification of the books, papers, minutes books and other records 
maintained by the Company, forms and returns filed, compliance related action taken by the Company, 
during the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 and also after 31st March, 2020 but before the issue of 
this report and the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives 
during my conduct of secretarial audit.

I hereby report that in my opinion, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 
2020 (hereinafter referred to as “the year”), the Company has complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the 
manner and subject to the reporting made here in after. The members are requested to read this report along 
with my letter of even date annexed to this report as Annexure- A.

1.	 I have examined the books, papers, minutes books and other records maintained by the Company and 
the forms and returns filed during the year according to the applicable provisions of:

	 i.	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), the rules made there under.

	 ii.	 The Companies Act, 1956.

	 iii.	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under.

	 iv.	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the regulations and bye-laws framed there under.

	 v.	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to  
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings;
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	 vi.	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

		  (a)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011;

		  (b)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)Regulations, 2015

		  (c)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an issue and share transfer agents) 
Regulations,1993 regarding the Companies Act, 2013 and dealing with client; and

		  (d)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2009.

2.	 I am informed that, during the year the Company was not required to maintain any books, papers, 
minute books or other records or to file any forms / returns according to the provisions of the following 
Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the SEBI Act:

	 (a)	 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

	 (b)	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 
2008;

	 (c)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,1998;

	 (d)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,2009;

3.	 I am also informed that for the year, there were no other laws specifically applicable to the company, the 
books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns of which were required to be examined by me for the 
purpose of this report.

4.	 i)	� I have also examined compliance with the Secretarial Standards 1 and 2 issued by The Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India.

	 ii)	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations,2015

5.	 During the period under review, and also considering the compliance related action taken by the 
Company after 31st March, 2020 but before the issue of this report, the Company has complied with the 
provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations and Agreements mentioned under paragraph 1 above, to the 
extent applicable.

6.	 I further report that:

	 (i)	� The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and a Women Director. The changes 
in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were 
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
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	 (ii)	� Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Notice of Board meetings 
were sent at least seven days in advance. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least 
seven days in advance

	 (iii)	� A system exists for directors to seek and obtain further information and clarifications on the agenda 
items before the meetings and for their meaningful participation at the meetings. Majority decision is 
carried through. I am informed that there were no dissenting members’ views on any of the matters 
during the year that were required to be captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

	 (iv)	� There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with its size and 
operations to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period following major events have happened which are deemed to 
have major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, 
guidelines, standards, etc:

The members at the Annual General Meeting held on 10/05/2019 have passed a Special Resolution to 
increase the borrowing limits U/S 180(1)( C) upto Rs 35 Cr.

Place	 :	 Coimbatore	 M.R.L. NARASIMHA 
Date	 :	 30-06-2020	 Practicing Company Secretary 
			   Membership No. F2851  
			   Certificate of Practice No.799
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Annexure A to Secretarial Audit Report of even date

To

The Members, 
National Fittings Limited 
[CIN: L29199TZ1993PLC008034] 
SF No: 112, Madhapur Road 
Kaniyur Village, Sulur TK 
Karumathampatti (Via) - 641659

My Secretarial Audit Report (Form MR-3) of even date for the financial year ended 31ST March, 2020 
is to be read along with this letter.

1.	 Maintenance of secretarial records and compliance with the provisions of corporate and other applicable 
laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 
responsibility is to express an opinion on the secretarial records produced for my audit.

2.	 I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records.

3.	 While forming an opinion on compliance and issuing this report, I have also taken into consideration 
the compliance related action taken by the Company after 31st March, 2020 but before the issue of this 
report.

4.	 I have verified the records to see whether the correct facts are reflected in the secretarial records. I 
also examined the compliance procedures followed by the Company. I believe that the processes and 
practices I followed provide are as on able basis for my opinion. I have not verified the correctness and 
appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the Company.

5.	 I have obtained the Management’s representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations 
and happening of events, wherever required.

6.	 My Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place	 :	 Coimbatore	 M.R.L. NARASIMHA 
Date	 :	 30-06-2020	 Practicing Company Secretary 
			   Membership No. F2851  
			   Certificate of Practice No.799
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS OF NATIONAL FITTINGS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of National Fittings Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the 
balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive 
income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (“the Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 (“Act”) in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and its profit, total 
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and cash flows for the year ended as on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the 
provisions of the Act and the rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the code of ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters 

In our opinion and based on the information and explanations given to us, there are key audit matters 
to be communicated in our report, other than those more fully described in the Emphasis of Matters 
paragraph of our report which describes the impact of Covid-19 pandemic on the Company’s operations 
and results as assessed by the management. 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The Key Audit matters Principal Audit Procedure
Title deeds of Immovable property

The Company’s Property, Plant & Equipment 
consists of certain immovable properties whose 
title has not been changed from the Erstwhile 
Transferor company’s name. 

 Refer Note 2. 1 to the Financial statement.

Consequent to Merger order by the Hon’ble NCLT, the 
title deeds of certain immovable properties were yet to 
be transferred to the company’s name from erstwhile 
Transferor company. The company is in the process 
of changing the name. 
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Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 2.30 to the Standalone financial result which explains COVID-19 that has 
caused significant disruptions in the business operations of the companies across India and has caused 
significant challenges on our performance of our attest function. One such challenge being the inability 
for the company to conduct a physical verification of inventories for the year end 31st March, 2020, due 
to imposition of nationwide lockdown by the Government. 

The Company’s management, however, conducted physical verification of inventories on dates other than 
the date of financial statements but prior to the date of the board meeting to be held for the purpose of 
adopting the financial results and has made available the documents in confirmation thereof. Inventories, 
being material to the financial statements/results of the Company, the Standard on Auditing (SA) 501, 
Audit Evidence-Specific consideration for selected items, cast a duty on us to obtain sufficient appropriate 
audit evidence regarding the existence and condition of inventories.

We have performed alternate sample audit procedures based on documents and other information made 
available to us, to audit the existence of inventories as per the Guidance provided by the Standard on 
Auditing (SA) 501, Audit Evidence-Specific considerations for selected items, and had obtained sufficient 
appropriate audit evidence to issue our unmodified opinion on these standalone financial results.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

Further to the continuous spreading of COVID -19 across India, the Indian Government announced a 
strict 21-day lockdown on March 24, 2020, which was further extended till June 30, 2020 across the India 
to contain the spread of the virus. This has resulted in restriction on physical visit to the client locations 
and the need for carrying out alternative audit procedures as per the Standards on Auditing prescribed 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).

As a result of the above, the entire audit was carried out based on remote access of the data as provided 
by the management. This has been carried out based on the advisory on “Specific Considerations while 
conducting Distance Audit / Remote Audit / Online Audit under current Covid-19 situation” issued by the 
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board of ICAI. We have been represented by the management that 
the data provided for our audit purposes is correct, complete, reliable and are directly generated by the 
accounting system of the Company without any further manual modifications.

We bring to the attention of the users that the audit of the financial statements has been performed in 
the aforesaid conditions.

Our audit opinion is not modified in respect of the above.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s 
Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and 
Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.		

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity 
of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016, as amended from time to time, and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give 
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or 
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

•	� Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	� Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial 
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls

•	� Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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•	� Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 
as a going concern.

•	� Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial 
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning 
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of 
any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and 
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of 
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give 
in Annexure “A” a  statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

	 (a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

	 (b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

	 (c)	 The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, and the cash flow statement dealt with by 
this report are in agreement with the books of account;

	 (d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting standards specified 
under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;
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	 (e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,2020 taken 
on record by the board of directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

	 (f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure 
B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of 
the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting; 

	 (g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197 (16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company 
to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act; and

	 (h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us;

		  a.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its 
financial statements – Refer Note 2.24 to the financial statements;

		  b.	 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses; and

		  c.	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company

 

	 For V Krish & Associates 
Chartered Accountants, 

Firm’s Registration No. 01452 S
	 Sd/- B. SATHISHKUMAR
Place	 :	 COIMBATORE	 Partner 
Date 	 :	 30.06.2020 	 Membership No. 218445 

UDIN : 20218445AAAAAP3502
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Annexure – A to the Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’ section of 
our report to the members of National Fittings Limited of even date)

1.	 In respect of the Company’s fixed assets:

	 (a)	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets.

	 (b)	 The fixed assets of the Company were physically verified in full by the management during 
the year. According to the information and explanations given to us and as examined by us, 
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

	 (c)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and 
based on the examination of the conveyance deeds provided to us, we report that, the title 
deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are 
held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date, except in respect of certain 
immovable property, the name is yet to be changed from the erstwhile Transferor company’s 
name consequent to the merger order by the Honb’ NCLT.

2.	 The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the 
frequency of such verification is reasonable. According to the information and explanations given to 
us and as examined by us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

3.	 According to information and explanation given to us, the company has not granted any loan, 
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in 
the register required under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iii) 
of the order is not applicable.

4.	 In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the company has not 
granted any loans or provided any guarantees or given any security or made any investments to 
which the provision of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, paragraph 3 
(iv) of the order is not applicable.

5.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not 
accepted any deposits and accordingly paragraph 3 (v) of the order is not applicable.

6.	 The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section 
(1) of section 148 of the Act for any of the activities of the company and accordingly paragraph 3 
(vi) of the order is not applicable.

7.	 In respect of statutory dues:

	 (a)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales- tax, service tax, goods 
and service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material 
statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2020 for a period of more than six months from 
the date they became payable, except as per details below:

Name of the 
statute

Nature of 
dues

Period to 
which the 
amount 
relates

Amount due Due 
date

Date of 
payment

Central Excise 
Act, 1944 Excise Duty 2007-08 0.12 Lakhs

Employees 
State Insurance 

Act, 1948

Insurance 
Premium 2004-2011

1.53 Lakhs (Against 6.80 
Lakhs demanded 5.27 
Lakhs has been paid)
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	 (b) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company 
examined by us, there are no dues of income-tax, sales- tax, service tax, goods and service 
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and value added tax which have not been deposited on 
account of any dispute.

8	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has no 
outstanding dues to any financial institutions or banks or any government or any debenture holders 
during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (viii) of the order is not applicable.

9.	 The term loans taken during the year have been applied for the purposes for which those are 
raised. The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments).

10.	 To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no 
fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been 
noticed or reported during the year.

11.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
paid/ provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by 
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

12.	 The Company is not a Nidhi Company and accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) of the order is not applicable 
to the Company.

13.	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 
and 188 of the Act. Where applicable, the details of such transactions have been disclosed in the 
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

14	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the company, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement 
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of 
the order is not applicable.

15	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the company, the company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or 
persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the order is not applicable.

16	 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the company, the company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

	 For V Krish & Associates 
Chartered Accountants, 

Firm’s Registration No. 01452 S
	 Sd/- B. SATHISHKUMAR
Place	 :	 COIMBATORE	 Partner 
Date 	 :	 30.06.2020 	 Membership No. 218445 

UDIN : 20218445AAAAAP3502
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the internal financial controls over financial reporting under clause (i) of sub - section 
3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of National Fittings Limited (“the 
Company”) as at March 31, 2020, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company 
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The board of directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India and the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those standards 
and the guidance note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating 
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
in the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial control system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial 
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance 
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of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention 
or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could 
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management of override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has, in all 
material respects, an adequate internal financial control system over financial reporting and such internal 
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

	 For V Krish & Associates 
Chartered Accountants, 

Firm’s Registration No. 01452 S
	 Sd/- B. SATHISHKUMAR
Place	 :	 COIMBATORE	 Partner 
Date 	 :	 30.06.2020 	 Membership No. 218445 

UDIN : 20218445AAAAAP3502
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020
					     Note	 As at	 As at  
				   Particulars	 No.	 31 March, 2020	 31 March, 2019 
						     `	 `

A	 ASSETS	
	 Non-current assets	
	 (a)	Property, plant and equipment	 2.1	  4,60,12,971	  46,88,81,632 
	 (b)	Capital work in progress		   99,06,545	  1,24,91,682 
	 (c)	Financial Assets	
		  (i)	 Investments	 2.2	  1,48,21,203 	  1,54,28,424
	 (ii)	 Other Financial Assets - Non-Current	 2.3	  1,81,87,775	  1,39,85,253						     ——————	 —————— 
	 Total non-current assets		   50,89,28,494 	  51,07,86,991						     ——————	 —————— 
	 Current Assets	
	 (a)	Inventories	 2.4	  15,31,39,438 	  13,03,69,613
	 (b)	Financial Assets	
		  (i)	 Trade Receivables	 2.5	  3,41,51,027	  4,64,14,324 
		  (ii)	 Cash and Cash Equivalents	 2.6	  8,66,07,781	  16,49,56,078 
		  (iii)	Short-Term Loans and Advances	 2.7	  5,00,87,206	  6,04,99,257 
		  (iv)	Other Current Assets	 2.8	  3,04,535	 3,12,216 						     ——————	 —————— 
	 Total current assets		   32,42,89,987 	  40,25,51,488						     ——————	 —————— 
	 TOTAL ASSETS	  	 83,32,18,481 	  91,33,38,480						     ——————	 —————— 
B	 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES	
	 EQUITY	
	 (a)	Share Capital	 2.9	  9,08,31,820	  9,08,31,820 
	 (b)	Other Equity	 2.10	  40,62,19,395 	  41,23,18,317						     ——————	 —————— 
	 Total of equity	  	 49,70,51,215 	  50,31,50,137						     ——————	 —————— 
	 LIABILITIES	
	 Non-Current Liabilities	
	 (a)	Financial Liabilities	
	    (i)	 Long-term borrowings	 2.11	  5,73,18,391 	  9,76,72,470
				   (a) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)	 2.12	  2,18,74,488	  2,06,06,637
				   (b) Employee Benefit Obligations	 2.13	  57,80,645	  57,52,054 						     ——————	 —————— 
	 Total of non-current liabilities		   8,49,73,524 	  12,40,31,161						     ——————	 —————— 
	 Current Liabilities	
	 (a) Financial Liabilities	
		  (i)	 Short-term borrowings	 2.14	  15,28,92,523	  15,74,83,558
		  (ii)	 Trade and other Payables	 2.15	  6,36,94,166 	  7,58,34,529
	 (b)	Other Current Liabilities	 2.16	  3,42,30,529 	  5,24,36,140
	 (c)	Employee Benefit Obligations	 2.17	  3,76,524 	  4,02,956						     ——————	 —————— 
	 Total current liabilities		   25,11,93,742	  28,61,57,182						     ——————	 —————— 
	 Total Equity and Liabilities		   83,32,18,481 	 91,33,38,480						     ——————	 —————— 
	 NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	 1 & 2

As per our report of even date annexed
for V Krish & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. 01452-S
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Managing Director
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For and on behalf of the Board



NATIONAL FITTINGS LIMITED

27th ANNUAL REPORT 54

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
	  			  Note	 For the	 For the 	
	 Particulars	 No.	 year ended	 year ended 
					    31 March, 2020	 31 March, 2019 
					    `	 `

1	 Revenue from operations (Net of taxes)	 2.18	 56,85,09,864	 58,03,50,534
2	 Other income	 2.19	 1,06,37,817	  1,87,27,796
						     ——————	 ——————
3	 Total revenue (1+2)	 	 57,91,47,681	 59,90,78,330						     ——————	 ——————

4	 Expenses	
	 (a)	Cost of Raw materials consumed	 2.20(a)	  18,27,49,220 	  18,74,97,302
	 (b)	Purchases of traded goods	 2.20(b)	  90,70,306 	 1,06,34,291 
	 (c)	Changes in inventories of finished goods, 
		  work-in-progress and stock-in-trade	 2.20(c)	  (2,11,31,553)	  (1,07,61,002)
	 (d)	Employee benefits expense	 2.21	  9,61,70,848	  9,00,57,317 
	 (e)	Finance costs	 2.22	  1,72,90,881 	 1,71,01,577
	 (f)	 Depreciation and amortisation expense	 2.01	  2,43,25,028	  2,64,67,748 
	 (g)	Other expenses	 2.23	  25,56,56,944 	 23,33,98,400
						     ——————	 ——————
			  Total expenses		  56,41,31,674	 55,43,95,634						     ——————	 ——————
5	 Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax (3 - 4)		 1,50,16,007	  4,46,82,696
6	 Tax expense:	
	 (a) Current tax expense	  	 25,05,359	  93,02,949
	 (b)	Less : MAT Credit availed		  (25,05,359)	 —
	 (c)	Tax for Earlier years		  3,95,006	 11,15,623
	 (d) Deferred tax (Income) / Expenses	 2.29	  12,67,851	  43,57,343
						     ——————	 ——————
				    	 16,62,857	 1,47,75,915						     ——————	 ——————
7	 Profit / (Loss) after Tax (5-6)		  1,33,53,150	 2,99,06,781						     ——————	 ——————

8	 Earnings per share (of `10/- each):	
	 (a) Basic	 2.28	 1.47	 3.29
	 (b) Diluted	 2.28	 1.47	 3.29

	 Significant accounting policies and Notes on Accounts	 1 & 2

As per our report of even date annexed
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020

Particulars	 As at 31.03.2020 	 As at 31.03.2019	

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax		   1,50,16,007		  4,46,82,696
Adjustments for:
	 Depreciation and amortisation	  2,43,25,028 		   2,64,67,748 	
	 (Profit) / loss on sale / write off of  Property	  3,20,753 		   (31,65,277)	
	 Loss on sale of investment	  — 		   8,01,916 	
	 Provision for Diminution value of Investment	  18,19,221 		  —	
	 Adjustments for: MAT Credit	  13,06,054 		   16,37,145 	
	 Finance costs	  1,72,90,881 		   1,71,01,577 	
	 Interest income	  (69,00,345)		  (1,00,22,584)	
	 Dividend income	  (6,667)		   (6,81,049)	
	 Rental income from Machineries	  (60,000)		   (1,32,096)	
	 Bad Debts written off	  — 	  3,80,94,925 	  8,090 	  3,20,15,470 
		  —————	 —————	 —————	 —————
Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes	  	  5,31,10,932 		   7,66,98,167 
Changes in working capital:
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
	 Inventories	  (2,27,69,826)		  (1,79,56,479)	
	 Trade receivables	  1,22,63,297 		  (1,63,67,796)	
	 Short-term loans and advances	  52,82,556 		   (17,77,184)	
	 Long-term loans and advances	  (42,02,522)		   25,57,926 	
	 Other current asset	  7,681 		   32,467 	
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:	
	 Trade payables	  (1,21,40,363)		   2,77,11,233 	
	 Other current liabilities	  (1,82,05,611)		   1,05,76,793 	
	 Employee Benefit Obligations	  2,159 		   2,93,052 	
			   ——————		  —————
			    (3,97,62,627)		   50,70,012 
Cash flow from extraordinary items		  —		  —			   ——————		  —————
Cash generated from operations		    1,33,48,305 		   8,17,68,179 
Net income tax (paid) / refunds		    47,34,490 		  (2,03,53,641)			   —————		  —————
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A)	   	  1,80,82,795 		   6,14,14,538 			   —————		  —————

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Capital expenditure on Property, plant and equipment 	  (2,70,14,622)		  (8,81,27,647)	
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment	  78,22,640 		   39,32,428 	
Purchase of equity shares	  (12,12,000)		   (2,49,000)	
Interest received	  69,00,345 		   1,00,22,584 	
Dividend received (Others)	  6,667 		   6,81,049 	
Rental from Machineries	  60,000 		   1,32,096 			  —————	 —————	
			   (1,34,36,971)		  (7,36,08,490)
Cash flow from extraordinary items		  —		  —			   —————		  —————
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B)		  (1,34,36,971)		  (7,36,08,490)
			   —————		  —————
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C. Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of   Long-Term borrowings	  (4,03,54,079)		   68,34,865 	
Increase in  Short-Term borrowings	  (45,91,035)		   3,00,17,905 	
Finance cost	  (1,72,90,881)		  (1,71,01,577)	
Dividend paid including Dividend Distribution Tax	  (2,07,58,125)		  — 				   —————		  —————
Cash flow from extraordinary items		  (8,29,94,120)		   1,97,51,192 			   —————		  —————
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C)		  (8,29,94,120)		   1,97,51,192 			   —————		  —————
Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)		  (7,83,48,295)		   75,57,240 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year		   16,49,56,078 		   15,73,98,839 			   —————		  —————
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year		   8,66,07,781 		   16,49,56,078 			   —————		  —————

Reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet:
Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet (Refer Note 2.6)		   8,66,07,781 		   16,49,56,078 
Less: Bank balances not considered as Cash and cash equivalents 
   as defined in AS 3 Cash Flow Statements		  —		  —
Net Cash and cash equivalents (as defined in AS 3 Cash Flow Statements)		  —————		  ————— 
   included in Note 2.6		   8,66,07,781 		   16,49,56,078 
		  	 —————		  —————
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year*
* Comprises:
(a)	 Cash on hand		   84,805 		   2,19,093 
(b)	 Balances with banks
	 (i) In current accounts		   1,36,88,577 		   2,85,12,388 
	 (ii) In deposit accounts		   7,28,34,399 		   13,62,22,588 
	 (iii) In Margin Money account (Earmarked fund) (Refer Note below)		  —		  2,010
	 		  —————		  —————
			    8,66,07,781 		   16,49,56,078 			   —————		  —————
Note:
These earmarked account balances with banks can be utilised only for the specific identified purposes.
a) In Bank Guarantee Margin Account		  — 		   2,010 
			   —————		  —————
			   —		   2,010			   —————		  —————

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020 (Contd.)
	 For the 	 For the  
 Particulars	 year ended	 year ended 
	 31.03.2020	 31.03.2019
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Statement of Changes in Equity
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Balance as at 
April 1, 2019 9,08,31,820  4,00,75,360  28,48,18,169  36,04,029  5,19,38,600  1,06,165  3,17,75,993 —   — —  50,31,50,136 

Profit for the year  1,33,53,150  1,33,53,150 

Transfer from 
Revaluation Reserve  1,06,165 (1,06,165) —   

Dividends (Including 
Dividend Distribution 
Tax)

 
(2,07,58,125)  (2,07,58,125)

Adjustment of MAT 
Credit  13,06,054  13,06,054 

Balance as atMarch 
31, 2020  9,08,31,820  4,00,75,360  27,88,25,413  36,04,029  5,19,38,600 —    3,17,75,993 — — —  49,70,51,215 
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2020.
Note		  Particulars

1	 Corporate Information
	 National Fittings Limited  (referred to as “the Company”) manufacture and sells SG Iron Grooved 

and Screwed Pipe Fittings, Stainless Pipe Fittings and Ball Valves for industrial and non-industrial 
applications.

	 The Company is a Public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India, whoes shares are 
publicly traded.

2	 Significant accounting policies
a)	 Statement of compliance

	 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards 
(refer. to as “ Ind-AS”) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time.

b)	 Basis of Preparation

	 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles in India (‘Indian GAAP’) to comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 
133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the 
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The financial statements have been prepared under the 
historical cost convention on accrual basis, except for certain financial instruments which are measured 
at fair value.

c)	 Use of estimates

	 The preparation of financial statements requires the management of the Company to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to 
the contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of income and 
expense during the year. Future results could differ due to changes in these estimates and the difference 
between the actual result and the estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known 
/ materialise.

d)	 Significant estimates and judgements

	 The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:
	 i)	� Estimation of useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment - Refer Note 2(e)
	 ii)	� Defined benefit obligation - Refer Note 2.27
	 iii)	� Estimation and evaluation of provisions and contingencies relating to tax litigations - Refer Note 

2.26

e)	 Property, plant and equipment

	 Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if 
any. Depreciation is provided for property, plant and equipment so as to expense the cost less residual 
value over their estimated useful lives based on technical evaluation. The estimated useful lives and 
residual value are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any change in estimate 
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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	 Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the straight-line method over the useful lives of assets 
as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013 except for Building and Plant and 
Machinery for which the Management estimates the useful lives as follows:

	 a)	 Building(1) 30-40 Years
	 a)	 Plant and Machinery(1) 5-10 Years
	 b)	 Patterns and Moulds 3 Years

	 (1)	� For these Building and Plant and Machinery, based on the internal assessment and independent 
technical evaluation carried out by the management, the useful lives as given above represent the 
period over which management expects to use these assets. Hence useful lives of these assets is 
different from the part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

	 Depreciation is not recorded on capital work In progress until construction and installation is complete 
and the asset is ready for its intended use.

f)	 Intangible assets

	 Intangible assets purchased are measured at cost as of the date of acquisition, as applicable, less 
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment, if any.

g)	 Leases

	 The Company has leased Certain tangible assets and such leases where the company has substantial 
retained all the risk and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases. Lease income on such 
operating leases are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss account on Straight Line Basis over 
the lease term.

	 Lease in which a significant portion of the risk and rewards of ownership are classified as operating 
leases. Lease Payments on such operating leases are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
account on Straight Line Basis over the period of lease.

h)	 Impairment

	 The carrying values of assets / cash generating units at each Balance Sheet date are reviewed for 
impairment. If any indication of  impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated 
and impairment is recognised, if the carrying amount of these assets exceeds their recoverable amount. 
The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and their value in use. Value in use is 
arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to their present value based on an appropriate discount 
factor. When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in earlier accounting 
periods no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss, except in case of revalued assets.

i)	 Investments

	 Long-term investments, are carried individually at cost less provision for diminution, other than 
temporary, in the value of such investments. Current investments are carried individually, at the 
lower of cost and fair value. Cost of investments include acquisition charges such as brokerage, 
fees and duties.

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2020.
Note 2 Significant accounting policies (Contd.)
Note		  Particulars



NATIONAL FITTINGS LIMITED

27th ANNUAL REPORT 60

j)	 Employee benefits

	 Short Term Employee Benefits

	 All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the services are recognized in the 
period in which the employee renders the related service.

	 Post Employment / Retirement Benefits

	 Defined Contribution Plans such as Provident Fund etc., are charged to the Profit and Loss account as 
incurred.

	 Defined Obligation Plans - The Present Value of the obligation under such plans, is determined based 
on an actuary valuation, using the Projected Unit Credit Method.  Actuarial gains and losses arising on 
such valuation are recognized immediately in the Profit and Loss account. 

	 Other Long Term Employee Benefits are recognized in the same manner as Defined Benefit Plans.

	 Termination Benefits

	 Termination Benefits are recognized as and when incurred.

k)	 Revenue recognition

	 National Fittings Ltd., (referred as Company) earns revenue primarily from sale of SG Iron Grooved 
and Screwed Pipe Fittings, Stainless Pipe Fittings and Ball Valves for industrial and non-industrial 
applications.

	 Sales are recognised, net of returns and trade discounts, on transfer of significant risks and rewards of 
ownership to the buyer, which generally coincides with the delivery of goods to customers. Revenue is 
net of Indirect taxes (Excise duty, VAT, GST).

	 Benefit on account of entitlement under the Duty Entitlement Pass Book scheme, accounted on 
estimated basis and recognised in the year of export.

	 Revenue from Export Sales are recognised based on date of dispatch.

l)	 Income Taxes

	 Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance 
with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

	 Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with  the tax laws, which gives future economic 
benefits in the form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is 
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as 
an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow 
to the Company.

	 Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences, being the differences between the taxable income 
and the accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more 
subsequent periods.  Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or 

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2020.
Note 2 Significant accounting policies (Contd.)
Note		  Particulars
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substantially enacted as at the reporting date.  Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all timing 
differences.  Deferred tax assets in respect of unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of losses 
are recognised only if there is virtual certainty that there will be sufficient future taxable income 
available to realise such assets. Deferred tax assets are recognised for timing differences of other 
items only to the extent that reasonable certainty exists that sufficient future taxable income will be 
available against which these can be realised.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if such 
items relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing tax laws and the Company has a 
legally enforceable right for such set off. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet 
date for their realisability.

	 Current and deferred tax relating to items directly recognised in equity are recognised in equity and not 
in the Profit and Loss Statement.

m)	 Foreign currency transactions and translations

	   i. 	� The transactions involving Foreign Currencies are accounted for at the rates prevailing on the date 
of  transactions and accordingly Gains/(Losses) arising out of fluctuation in exchange rates are 
recognized in the Profit & Loss Statement

	 ii	� In case of forrward contracts, if any, the difference between the forward rate and the exchange rate 
at the prevailing period is recognized in the Profit & Loss Statement over the life of the contract.

	 iii.	� Foreign currency monetary Assets & Liabilities such as cash, receivables, payables etc., are 
translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the year end and overall net gain/loss is adjusted to 
the Profit & Loss Statement.

	 iv.	� Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currency such as investment, fixed assets etc., are 
valued at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transactions

n)	 Inventories

	 Inventories of Raw Materials, Stores and Spares parts, Work in progress and Finished goods are 
valued at the lower of cost ascertained on weighted average cost basis and the net realisable value 
after providing for obsolescence and other losses, where considered necessary.  Cost includes all 
charges in bringing the goods to the point of sale, including octroi and other levies, transit insurance 
and receiving charges. Work-in-progress and finished goods include appropriate proportion of 
overheads. 

	 Stock of tools are valued at cost and are written off over a period of ten years.

o)	 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

	 A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and 
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which 
a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not discounted to 
their present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation 
at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect 
the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Notes. Contingent assets are 
neither recognised or disclosed in the financial statements.

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2020.
Note 2 Significant accounting policies (Contd.)
Note		  Particulars
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p)	 Financial instruments

	 Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provision of the instrument. Financial asset and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Cash 
comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. 

q)	 Cash and cash equivalents

	 Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date 
of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and 
which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. 

r)	 Stock of Tools

	 The stocks of Tools including those developed in-house are being written off over a period of 10 years. 
Expenses incurred on New Product Development are written off over a period of 5 years.

s)	 Earnings per share

	 Basic and diluted  earning per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post 
tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the year. 

t)	 Segment reporting

	 The Company identifies primary segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns 
and the internal organisation and management structure. The operating segments are the segments 
for which separate financial information is available and for which operating profit/loss amounts are 
evaluated regularly by the Executive Management in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing 
performance.

	 The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the 
Company. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been 
identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment. 

	 Inter-segment revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarily determined based 
on market / fair value factors.

	 Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocable 
to segments on reasonable basis have been included under “unallocated revenue / expenses / assets / 
liabilities”.

u)	 Cost recognition

	 Cost and expenses are recognised when incurred and have been classified according to their nature.    
The borrowing cost represents interest payable on loans taken for carrying out business operations and 
the same is charged to revenue.

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2020.
Note 2 Significant accounting policies (Contd.)
Note		  Particulars
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 Note 2.1 Property, Plant and Equipment 
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 Cost as at April 1, 2019 12,99,44,621 8,95,10,813 31,03,08,213 2,45,86,710 55,10,410 1,57,33,203 49,08,107 17,02,340 2,15,50,850 29,63,280 1,00,00,000 1,24,91,682 62,92,10,229

Additions 7,48,538 1,56,76,911 71,55,920 21,24,760 9,91,813 25,98,227 3,03,590 1,19,75,671 4,15,75,430

Disposals 9,76,033 1,50,874 31,11,410 28,82,400 57,525 31,55,741 2,09,157 1,45,60,808 2,51,03,948

Cost as at 31st March 2020 12,89,68,588 9,01,08,477 32,28,73,714 2,88,60,230 76,35,170 1,56,75,678 58,99,920 17,02,340 2,09,93,336 30,57,713 1,00,00,000 99,06,545 64,56,81,711

 Accumulated depreciation 
as at April 1, 2019 - 1,92,49,815 8,93,56,083 1,30,80,311 29,48,051 64,43,328 38,12,075 10,64,450 48,05,940 16,01,999 54,74,863 14,78,36,915

 Depreciation for the year - 31,58,974 1,46,30,019 25,03,432 5,21,940 6,44,731 2,75,243 72,201 16,06,617 3,36,851 5,75,020 2,43,25,028

 Disposals - 46,906 8,21,925 3,84,456 54,649 9,07,911 1,83,900 23,99,747

 Accumulated depreciation 
as at 31st March 2020 - 2,23,61,883 10,31,64,177 1,51,99,287 34,69,991 70,33,410 40,87,318 11,36,651 55,04,646 17,54,950 60,49,883 - 16,97,62,196

 Net carrying amounts as at 
31st March 2020 12,89,68,588 6,77,46,594 21,97,09,537 1,36,60,943 41,65,179 86,42,268 18,12,602 5,65,689 1,54,88,690 13,02,763 39,50,117 99,06,545 47,59,19,515

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2020.
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Note: 2.2  Investments consist of the following
a)	 Investment - non-current
	 Investment in body corporates		  71,14,424 	  59,02,424
	 Investment in subsidiary		  —	 — 

b)	 Investment - current 
	 Mutual Fund units (Quoted)		   95,26,000	  95,26,000

As at 31st March,2020 As at 31st March, 2019

Quoted Unquoted Total Quoted Unquoted Total

 `  `  `  `  `  ` 

Investments (At cost):

A Trade

(a) Investment in Balanced Fund 

(i) 14350.50 (31.03.2019 14350.50 units ) units 
of Rs.132.40 in  M/s ICCI Prudential - Growth 
(Balanced Fund)  Market value as on 31.03.2020 
Rs.15,20,574/- 

 19,00,000  19,00,000  19,00,000  19,00,000 

(ii) 73669.10 (31.03.2019  73669.10 units ) 
units of Rs.25.80 in M/s L&T India - Growth 
(Balanced fund)   Market value as on 31.03.2020 
Rs.15,76,298/- 

 19,00,000  19,00,000  19,00,000  19,00,000 

(iii) 46071.50 (31.03.2019  46071.50 units) 
units of Rs.43.40 in  M/s Axis Long Term Equity 
fund  - Growth  Market value as on 31.03.2020  
Rs..17,75,946/- 

 20,00,001  20,00,001  20,00,001  20,00,001 

(iv) 2429.70 ( 31.03.2019  2429.70 units ) units of 
Rs.751.50 in  M/s Aditya Birla Sun Life - Growth 
(Balanced Fund)  Market value as on 31.03.2020 
Rs.13,92,326/- 

 18,25,999  18,25,999  18,25,999  18,25,999 

(v) 9629.403 (31.03.2019  9629.403 units ) units 
of Rs.197.30 in  M/s HDFC  Advantage Fund - 
Growth (Balanced Fund)   Market value as on 
31.03.2020  Rs.14,46,734/- 

 19,00,000  19,00,000  19,00,000  19,00,000 

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Contd.)
		  As at	 As at 
	 Particulars	 31 March, 2020	 31 March 2019	
		  `	 `
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As at 31st March,2020 As at 31st March, 2019

Quoted Unquoted Total Quoted Unquoted Total

 `  `  `  `  `  ` 

(b) Investment in Equity Shares

(i) 400  shares of  ` 10 each fully paid up in 
M/s. Bank of India Ltd. Market Value as on 
31.03.2020 Rs. 12,900/-

 18,000  18,000  18,000  18,000 

(ii) 26,667 shares of  ` 1 each fully paid up in 
M/s. South Indian Bank Ltd. Market Value as on 
31.03.2020 Rs. 1,79,202/-

 1,26,924  1,26,924  1,26,924  1,26,924 

(iii) 2,000 shares of ` 10 each fully paid up in 
M/s. Rajshree Sugars & Chemicals Ltd.
Market Value as on 31.03.2020 Rs.44,000/-

 20,000  20,000  20,000  20,000 

(c) Investment in Clover Energy Pvt Ltd 

473750  equity shares (As on 31st March 2019 
473750 equity shares)  of Rs.10 each 
 Market value as on 31.03.2020 not ascertained 

 59,49,500  59,49,500  47,37,500  47,37,500 

(d) Investment in Mytrah Energy (India) Private Limited  

100000 Equity Shares (As on 31st March 2019, 
100000 shares) of  Rs.10 Each fully paid up 
 Market value as on 31.03.2020 not ascertained 

 10,00,000  10,00,000  10,00,000  10,00,000 

Total investment  96,90,924  69,49,500  1,66,40,424  96,90,924  57,37,500  1,54,28,424 

Aggregate amount of quoted investments  96,90,924  96,90,924 

Aggregate market value of listed and quoted 
investments  79,47,980  1,01,79,950 

Provision for diminution in the value of 
investments  (18,19,221)

Aggregate value of listed but not quoted 
investments —   —   

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  69,49,500  57,37,500 

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Contd.)



NATIONAL FITTINGS LIMITED

27th ANNUAL REPORT 66

Note 2.3 Other Financial Assets - Non-Current
(a)	 Security deposits  
	 (Unsecured, considered good)		
	 Electricity Deposit		   1,38,69,553 	  1,24,50,661 
	 Telephone Deposits		   97,408 	  97,408 
	 Cylinder Deposits		   1,00,350 	  92,550 
	 Rental deposits		   2,17,050 	  1,74,050 
	 Other Deposits		   2,000 	  2,000

(b)	 Balances with government authorities 		
	 (Unsecured, considered good)		
	 (i)	 Advance paid against disputed excise duty		   62,976 	  11,41,559 
	 (ii)	 Advance paid against disputed Employee State Insurance		   27,025 	  27,025 
	 (ii)	 MAT Entitlement Credit		   38,11,413 	 —   
			   ——————	 ——————
	 Total		    1,81,87,775 	  1,39,85,253 
			   ——————	 ——————

Note 2.4 Inventories
(At lower of cost and net realisable value)		
(a)	 Raw materials 		   1,53,50,651 	  1,60,82,345 
(b)	 Work-in-progress (Refer Note Below)		   10,82,30,499 	  8,71,55,071 
(c)	 Packing Materials		   6,00,883 	  5,43,753 
(d)	 Stores and spares 		   2,14,02,609 	  1,91,25,116 
(e)	 Loose tools 		   7,34,156 	  6,98,812 
(f)	 Stock in Trade		   68,20,641 	  67,64,517 
			   ——————	 ——————
	 Total		    15,31,39,438 	  13,03,69,613 
			   ——————	 ——————

Note: Details of inventory of work-in-progress 		

SG Iron Fittings		   7,39,43,956 	  5,59,48,571 

SS Fittings 		   2,50,01,268 	  2,29,21,136 

SS Ball Valves		   92,85,275 	  82,85,364 

			   ——————	 ——————
				      10,82,30,499 	  8,71,55,071 
			   ——————	 ——————

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Contd.)
		  As at	 As at 
	 Particulars	 31 March, 2020	 31 March 2019	
		  `	 `
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Note 2.5 Trade receivables
Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding 
six months from the date they were due for payment		

(Unsecured, considered good)	  	  29,54,538 	  9,24,192 

Doubtful			   —  	 —   

			   ——————	 ——————
	  			   29,54,538	  9,24,192 
Other Trade receivables		
(Unsecured, considered good)		   3,11,96,489	  4,54,90,132 
Doubtful			   —  	 —   
			   ——————	 ——————
				    3,11,96,489 	   4,54,90,132
			   ——————	 ——————
	 Total		   3,41,51,027 	  4,64,14,324
			   ——————	 ——————

Note 2.6 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
(a)	 Cash on hand		  84,805 	 2,19,093

(b)	 Balances with banks		

	 (i) 	 In current account with Scheduled Banks		   53,10,064	 2,05,31,184

	 (ii)	 In deposit accounts with Scheduled Banks (Refer Note below)		   7,28,34,399	 13,62,22,588

	 (iii)	 In Margin Money accounts		

		  - Balances held as margin money or security against  
		  borrowings, guarantees and other commitments 		   — 	 2,010 

	 (iv)	 In Dividend Account with Scheduled Bank		   83,78,513	  79,81,204 
			   ——————	 ——————
	 Total 		   8,66,07,781 	  16,49,56,078 
			   ——————	 ——————
Note:		
(i)	 Balances with banks include deposits with a scheduled bank amounting to Rs. 7,28,34,399/-

	 (As at 31 March, 2019, Rs. 13,62,22,588/-) which have an original maturity of 12 months.

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Contd.)
		  As at	 As at 
	 Particulars	 31 March, 2020	 31 March 2019	
		  `	 `
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Note 2.7 Short-term loans and advances		
(a)	 Advance for supplies		

	 (i)	 To related parties @		  28,274  	  —   

	 (ii)	 Others		   59,95,949	  67,06,252

(b)	 Loans and advances to employees 		   83,88,637 	  85,16,863 

(c)	 Prepaid expenses  		   27,82,908 	  31,48,337 

(d)	 Balances with government authorities 		

	 Unsecured, considered good		

	 (i)	 GST / CENVAT credit receivable		   64,67,050	  80,37,141

	 (ii)	 Export Incentives receivable		   65,90,979	  37,89,335

(e)	 MEIS License in Hand		  —	  27,20,062

(f)	 Preliminary Expenses		   35,10,354 	  36,16,277

(g)	 Product Development Expenditure		   38,37,625	 47,59,356   

(h)	 Advance Tax (net or provision)		   1,24,85,430	  1,92,05,635

			   ——————	 ——————
	 Total		   5,00,87,206	 6,04,99,258
			   ——————	 ——————

@ Note: Advances  against supplies  to related party include :		

	 M/s Haitima India Pvt Ltd		   28,274 	 —   

			   ——————	 ——————
				     28,274 	 —
			   ——————	 ——————

Note 2.8 Other current assets		
(a)	 Accruals 		

	 (i)	 Interest accrued on deposits		   3,01,736	  3,09,716 

   	 (ii)	 Vehicle Tollgate Deposit		   2,800	  2,500 

			   ——————	 ——————
	 Total		   3,04,536	  3,12,216 
			   ——————	 ——————

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Contd.)
		  As at	 As at 
	 Particulars	 31 March, 2020	 31 March 2019	
		  `	 `
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Note 2.9 Share Capital

 As at 
31st March, 2020

 As at 
31 March, 2019

 Number of 
shares  Amount  Number of 

shares  Amount 

(a) Authorised

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 

Opening Balance  2,45,00,000  24,50,00,000  2,45,00,000  24,50,00,000 

Closing Balance  2,45,00,000  24,50,00,000  2,45,00,000  24,50,00,000 

Non-convertible Non-cumulative Redeemable 9% 
preference shares of `100 each  5,00,000  5,00,00,000  5,00,000  5,00,00,000 

(b) Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each with voting rights  90,83,182  9,08,31,820  90,83,182  9,08,31,820 

Total  90,83,182  9,08,31,820  90,83,182  9,08,31,820 

Refer Notes (i) to (iii) below

Notes:

(i)	 Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting 
period:

Particulars Opening 
Balance

Issued 
during the 

year

Redeemed 
during the 

year

Closing 
Balance

Equity shares with voting rights

Year ended 31 March, 2020

- Number of shares  90,83,182 —   —  90,83,182 

- Amount (`)  9,08,31,820 — —  9,08,31,820 

Year ended 31 March, 2019

- Number of shares  90,83,182 —   —  90,83,182 

- Amount (`)  9,08,31,820 — —  9,08,31,820 

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Contd.)
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(ii) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Class of shares / Name of shareholder 

As at 31 March, 2020 As at 31 March, 2019

Number of 
shares held

% holding 
in that class 

of shares 

Number of 
shares held

% holding 
in that 

class of 
shares 

Equity shares 

Promoter Group  30,92,093  34.04  30,92,093  34.04 

(iii)	 Terms / rights attached to shares

	 (a)	 The company has only one class of equity shares having at par value of  Rs.10/- per share. Each holder of 
equity shares is entilted to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The 
Board of Directors have recommended a dividend of Rs.1.50/- per equity shares of Rs.10 each amounting 
to Rs.136.24 lacs excluding dividend distribution tax approved by members of the company in their Annual 
General Meeting held on 23rd September’2019. 

	 (b)	 In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining 
assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts.  The distribution will be proportion to the 
number of equity shares held by the shareholders.	

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Contd.)
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Note 2.10  Other Equity
(a)	 Capital reserve (Backward area subsidy)			 
	 Opening balance		   36,04,029 	 36,04,029
	 Add: Additions during the year 
	         Transfer from General Reserves		  —	 —
			   ——————	 ——————
	 Closing balance		   36,04,029 	  36,04,029 
(b)	 Capital Redemption Reserve			 
	 Opening balance		   5,19,38,600 	  5,00,00,000 
	 Add: Additions during the year - 		  —	  19,38,600 
	 Less : Utilised during the year 		  —   	 — 
			   ——————	 ——————
	 Closing balance		   5,19,38,600 	  5,19,38,600 
(c)	 Securities Premium account			 
	 Opening balance		   4,00,75,360 	  4,00,75,360
	 Add: Additions during the year 			   —
	 Less : Utilised during the year 		  —   	 —
			   ——————	 ——————
	 Closing balance		   4,00,75,360 	  4,00,75,360 
(d)	 General reserve			 
	 Opening balance		   3,17,75,993 	  3,17,75,993
	 Add: Transferred from surplus in  Profit and Loss Statement		  —	 —   
	 Less: Utilised / transferred during the year - Capital Reserve			    —
			   ——————	 ——————
	 Closing balance		   3,17,75,993 	  3,17,75,993 
(e)	 Revaluation reserve			 
	 Opening balance		   1,06,165	 2,36,855   
	 Less: Transferred to surplus in  Profit and Loss Statement		   (1,06,165)	 (1,30,690)
			   ——————	 ——————
	 Closing balance		   —	 1,06,165  

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Contd.)
		  As at	 As at 
	 Particulars	 31 March, 2020	 31 March 2019	
		  `	 `
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(e)	 Surplus / (Deficit) in  Profit and Loss Statement			 
	 Opening balance		   28,48,18,170 	  25,31,43,554 
	 Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year		   1,33,53,150 	  2,99,06,781 
	 Transferred from Revaluation Reserve		   1,06,165 	  1,30,690 
	  MAT Credit adjustment		   13,06,054 	  16,37,145 
	 Final Dividend on Eq. Share   		   1,36,24,773 	  —   
	 Dividend Distribution Tax on above		   28,00,572 	  —   
	 Pre. Share Dividend @ 9%		   36,00,000 	 —
	 Dividend Distribution Tax on above		   7,32,780 	 —
			   ——————	 ——————
	 Closing balance		   27,88,25,413 	  28,48,18,170 
			   ——————	 ——————
	 Total (a+b+c+d+e)		    40,62,19,395 	  41,23,18,317 
			   ——————	 ——————

Note 2.11 Long - term borrowings 
Non-convertible Non-cumulative Redeemable 9% preference shares		
4,00,000 Non-convertible Non-cumulative Redeemable  
9% preference shares of `100 each		   4,00,00,000 	  4,00,00,000 

Secured  
Term Loans from Bank of India		   1,73,18,391	  5,76,72,470
			   ——————	 ——————
	 Total			     5,73,18,391 	  9,76,72,470 
			   ——————	 ——————
Other Note			 
a)	 Non-convertible Non-cumulative Redeemable 9% preference shares of `100 each 
	� The reconciliation of number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at March 31, 2020, March 

31, 2019.

Class of shares / Name of shareholder 

 As at 
31st March, 2020

 As on 
31.03.2019 

 Numbers of 
Shares  Amount  Numbers 

of Shares  Amount 

No. of Shares at the beginning of the year   4,00,000  4,00,00,000  4,00,000  4,00,00,000 

No. of Shares Issued during the  year / period —   — — —

No. of Shares at the End of the year / period  4,00,000  4,00,00,000  4,00,000 4,00,00,000 

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Contd.)
		  As at	 As at 
	 Particulars	 31 March, 2020	 31 March 2019	
		  `	 `
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Name of Shareholders  No of 
shares  % holding  No of 

shares  % holding 

Western India Steel Company Private Limited  2,00,000 50.00%  2,00,000 50.00%

Asian Fittings  2,00,000 50.00%  2,00,000 50.00%

Total number of shares outstanding  4,00,000 100.00%  4,00,000 100.00%

b)	� The company has only one class of Preference shares  having at par value of Rs.100/- per share which is non-
convertible and non-cumulative. The preference shares are entitled to a dividend of 9% and will be redeemable at 
par subject to the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 after the expiry of the sixth year but before the expiry of 
the twelfth year from the date of allotment of the shares by one or more installments at the option of the company 
by giving 3 month’s notice.  The Board of Directors have recommended a Preference dividend of 9% per share 
of  Rs.100/- each redeemable, non-cummulative and non-convertible  preference shares amounting to Rs.36 lacs 
excluding dividend distribution tax approved by members of the company at their Annual General Meeting held on 
23rd September’2019.

c)	 There are no defaults in the repayment of loan and interest during the year.

Note: 2.12 Deferred Tax Liability (net)
Deferred Tax Liability (Net)		   2,18,74,488 	  2,06,06,637 
			   ——————	 ——————
Ref. Additional information note 2.29	 	  2,18,74,488 	  2,06,06,637 
			   ——————	 ——————

Note 2.13 Employee Benefit Obligation 
Provision for employee benefits: 					  
	 (i)	 Provision for Earned Leave		   4,11,053	  4,16,376
	 (ii)	 Provision for Gratuity (net) (Refer Note 2.25.b)		   53,69,592	  53,35,678
			   ——————	 ——————
	 Total			    57,80,645 	  57,52,054 
			   ——————	 ——————

Note 2.14 Short-term borrowings 
Loans repayable on demand		
	 From banks 		
	 Secured		
	 Working Capital 		   89,71,235 	  2,43,76,239 
	 Export Packing Credit from Bank of India #		   12,02,65,860 	  11,45,86,614 
	 Letter of Credit from Bank of India #		   1,25,35,226 	  54,70,705 
	 Demand Loan against Deposits@		   1,11,20,202 	  1,30,50,000 
			   ——————	 ——————
	 Total			     15,28,92,523 	  15,74,83,558 
			   ——————	 ——————

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Contd.)
		  As at	 As at 
	 Particulars	 31 March, 2020	 31 March 2019	
		  `	 `
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From BANK OF INDIA:

#	� “From BANK OF INDIA:

Working capital loans comprising of cash credit Export Packing Credit and other non fund based limits are secured by 
hypothecation of stocks and book debts and collaterally secured by Hypothecation of Machinery and equitable mortgage 
of property situate at Kaniyur Village

During the year the company has not defaulted in repayment of loan and interest.  

@	 Demand Loan  availed is secured by lien on  Fixed Deposits with Bank of India.

Note 2.15 Trade and other  payables
Trade payables:

	 Other than Acceptances #	  	  6,36,94,166 	  7,58,34,529 
					     ——————	 ——————
	 Total	  		   6,36,94,166 	  7,58,34,529 					     ——————	 ——————

	 # Trade payables includes payable to related parties		

	 a.	 Haitima (India) Private Ltd 		   —	  43,421 

Note 2.16 Other current liabilities		

(i)	 Unclaimed Dividend		   85,89,877	  79,90,427

(ii)	 Other dues payable		

  	 (a)	 Statutory remittances		   13,79,485	 35,20,493

	 (b)	 Advances from customers		   1,22,52,780	 1,75,64,724 

	 (c)	 Provision for Expenses		   1,20,08,387	 2,33,60,496 
					     ——————	 ——————
		  Total		   3,42,30,529	  5,24,36,140 					     ——————	 ——————

Note:2.17 Employee benefit obligation		
(i)	 Provision for Earned Leave	  	 26,464	  28,223

(ii)	 Provision for Gratuity (net) (Ref Note 2.25.b)		   3,50,060	 3,74,733
					     ——————	 ——————
	 Total		   	 3,76,524	  4,02,956					     ——————	 ——————

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Contd.)
		  As at	 As at 
	 Particulars	 31 March, 2020	 31 March 2019	
		  `	 `
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2.18	 Revenue from operations
(a)	 Sale of products (Refer Note (i) below)		    54,90,65,461 	  55,78,67,904 
					     ——————	 ——————
				     54,90,65,461 	  55,78,67,904 
(b)	 Other operating revenues (Refer Note (iii) below)		   1,94,44,403 	  2,24,82,630 
					     ——————	 ——————
		   		   56,85,09,864 	  58,03,50,534 
					     ——————	 ——————
Notes.
(i)	 Sale of products comprises:		
	 Manufactured goods		
	 SG Pipe Fittings		   49,28,02,854 	  50,10,25,085 
	 SS Fittings		   4,69,88,309 	  4,97,88,438 
	 SS Ball Valves		  —   	  25,22,841 
					     ——————	 ——————
				     53,97,91,163 	  55,33,36,364 
					     ——————	 ——————

 	 # Sales includes (Export)  cargo stock 		   38,28,798 	  80,60,030 
	 Traded goods
	 Water Pump		   81,69,298	  29,87,696    
	 Roll Grooving machine and others		   11,05,000	 15,43,844
					     ——————	 ——————
				     92,74,298	 45,31,540
					     ——————	 ——————
	 Total - Sale of products		    54,90,65,461 	  55,78,67,904 
(ii) 	 Geographical Revenue from:
	 Domestic		   17,58,69,457 	  13,11,05,049 
	 Export		   37,31,96,004 	  42,67,62,855 
					     ——————	 ——————
	 Total			     54,90,65,461 	  55,78,67,904 
(iii)	 Other operating revenues  comprise:
	 Scrap Sale		   18,77,442 	  16,36,957 
	 Duty drawback and other export incentives 		   1,75,66,961 	  2,08,45,673 
					     ——————	 ——————
	 Total - Other operating revenues		    1,94,44,403 	  2,24,82,630 
					     ——————	 ——————

2.19	 Other Income
(a)	 Interest income (Refer Note (i) below)		   69,00,345 	 1,00,22,584
(b)	 Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translation 
	 (other than considered as finance cost)		   36,48,573	  46,09,416 
(c)	 Other non-operating income (net of expenses directly attributable  
	 to such income) (Refer Note (ii) below)		   88,899	 40,95,796
					     ——————	 ——————
	 Total			    1,06,37,817	  1,87,27,796
					     ——————	 ——————

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Contd.)
		  For the year ended	 For the year ended 
	 Particulars	 31 March, 2020	 31 March 2019 
	 	 `	 `
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Notes.			 
(i)	 Interest income comprises:
	 Interest from banks:		
	 On Fixed Deposits		   51,84,669 	  84,31,782 
	 On LC and BG Margin Money Deposits		   2,50,886 	  2,24,194 
	 Other interest		   14,64,790 	  13,66,608 
					     ——————	 ——————
	 Total - Interest income		    69,00,345 	  1,00,22,584 
					     ——————	 ——————

(ii)	 Other non-operating income comprises:		
	 Rental from Machines		   60,000 	  1,32,096 
	 Dividend Income 		   6,667 	  6,81,049 
	 Profit on sale of asset (net of)		  —   	  31,65,277 
	 Labour charges receipt		   10,626 	 —   
	 Others		   11,606 	  1,17,374 
					     ——————	 ——————
	 Total Other non-operating income		   88,899 	  40,95,796 
					     ——————	 ——————

2.20(a) Cost of Raw Material consumed		
	 Opening stock		   1,60,82,345	 1,17,07,643
	 Add: Purchases		   18,20,17,526	 19,18,72,004
					     ——————	 ——————
				     19,80,99,871	 20,35,79,647 
	 Less: Closing stock		   1,53,50,651	 1,60,82,345
					     ——————	 ——————
	 Total			    18,27,49,220	 18,74,97,302 
					     ——————	 ——————

	 Material consumed comprises:
	 M S  Scrap and other alloys		  14,85,21,748	 14,75,00,008
	 EPDM Rubber		   1,67,04,295	 1,99,10,208
	 SS Scrap & other alloys		   1,75,23,177	 2,00,87,086 
					     ——————	 ——————
	 Total			    18,27,49,220	 18,74,97,302
					     ——————	 ——————

 2.20(b)  Purchase of traded goods 		    90,70,306 	  1,06,34,291 
					     ——————	 ——————
	 Total			     90,70,306 	  1,06,34,291 
					     ——————	 ——————

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Contd.)
		  For the year ended	 For the year ended 
	 Particulars	 31 March, 2020	 31 March 2019 
		  `	 `
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 2.20(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods,  
	   work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
	 Inventories at the end of the year:
	 Finished goods		  —  	 —   
	 Work-in-progress		   10,82,30,499 	  8,71,55,071 
	 Stock-in-trade		   68,20,641 	  67,64,517 
					     ——————	 ——————
				     11,50,51,140 	  9,39,19,588 
	 Inventories at the beginning of the year:
	 Finished goods		  —   	 —   
	 Work-in-progress		   8,71,55,070 	  6,93,53,056 
	 Work-in-progress		  —   	  1,38,05,530 
	 Stock-in-trade		   67,64,517 	 —   
					     ——————	 ——————
				      9,39,19,587 	  8,31,58,586 
					     ——————	 ——————
	 Net (increase) / decrease		    (2,11,31,553)	  (1,07,61,002)
					     ——————	 ——————

2.21	 Employee benefits expense
	 Salaries and wages		   8,40,58,002 	  7,87,68,004 
	 Contributions to provident and other funds 		   45,10,813 	  49,34,814 
	 Staff welfare expenses 		   76,02,033 	  63,54,499 
					     ——————	 ——————
	 Total			    9,61,70,848 	  9,00,57,317 
					     ——————	 ——————

2.22	  Finance costs
	 (a)	 Interest expense on:		
		  (i)	 Packing Credit and Cash Credit		   72,53,035 	  77,93,776 
		  (ii)	 Bills discounted/ Realised/Overdue		   23,62,173 	  24,72,286 
		  (iii)	 Letters of Credit		   25,38,088 	  1,58,577 
		  (iv)	 Term Loan		   24,22,893 	  52,71,603 
		  (v)	 Others ( Including Interest on Loan against Term Deposit Receipt)	  10,72,223 	  9,89,971 
		  (vi)	 Bank Charges		   16,42,469 	  4,15,365 
					     ——————	 ——————
		  Total			    1,72,90,881 	  1,71,01,577 
					     ——————	 ——————

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Contd.)
		  For the year ended	 For the year ended 
	 Particulars	 31 March, 2020	 31 March 2019 
		  `	 `
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Note 2.23  Other Expenses
Consumption of stores and spare parts		   10,38,64,208 	  9,13,85,315 
Consumption of packing materials		   1,09,65,531 	  1,00,32,113 
Corporate Social Responsibility		   4,61,713 	  18,69,299 
Power and fuel		   8,78,84,911 	  8,50,81,911 
Water	 			   64,730 	  6,83,570 
Rent 	  			   —	 3,65,703 
Repairs and maintenance - Buildings		   14,55,863 	  3,35,670 
                                         - Machinery 		  94,17,845 	  33,60,853 
                                         - Computer 		  11,28,730 	  7,37,925 
                                        - Vehicle (Including Fuel)		   30,53,964 	  30,83,180 
                                        - Others	  	 28,08,056 	  29,05,708 
Insurance - Export	  	 13,47,260 	  10,05,434 
                 - Product Liability		   2,76,131 	  2,82,396 
                 - Others 		  5,96,975 	  4,06,009 
Directors sitting fees and Meeting expenses		   3,62,500 	  2,99,000 
Diminution in value of investments		   18,19,221 	 —   
Rates and taxes		   17,21,047 	  12,85,440 
Watch and Ward expenses		   24,61,845 	  20,61,645 
Communication		   2,97,359 	  3,24,148 
Travelling and conveyance 		   8,01,910 	  11,17,674 
Printing and stationery		   9,92,564 	  8,77,085 
Postage and Telegram		   3,83,353 	  1,98,875 
Freight and forwarding 		   1,22,85,461 	  1,45,05,688 
Loss on sale of License, short realisation  and processing charges		   6,54,416 	  6,53,214 
Business promotion including advertisement	  	 5,85,282 	  3,91,170 
Donations and contributions		   21,500 	  4,400 
Legal and professional 		   43,57,084 	  40,23,579 
Payments to auditors (Refer Note (i) below)		   5,89,819 	  8,02,428 
Audit Fees - Tax audit, Internal audit		   3,30,000 	  3,30,000 
Bad trade and other receivables, loans and advances written off		  —  	  8,090 
Product Development expenses written off		  14,41,068 	  12,97,157 
Preliminary Expenses written off		   8,77,588 	  9,04,069 
Loss on sale of investments		  —   	  8,01,916 
Loss on fixed assets sold / scrapped / written off 		   3,20,753 	 —   
Miscellaneous expenses 		   20,28,257 	  19,72,736 
 				    ——————	 ——————
Total	  	   		    25,56,56,944 	  23,33,98,400 
				    ——————	 ——————
Notes:	
(i)	 Payments to the auditors comprises (net of service tax input credit):
	 For Statutory Audit		   3,70,000 	  4,50,000 
	 For company law matters 		   1,00,000 	  1,60,000 
	 For other services 		  —	  2,000 
	 Reimbursement of expenses		   1,19,819 	  1,90,428 
 				    ——————	 ——————
	 Total	  		   5,89,819 	  8,02,428 
				    ——————	 ——————

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Contd.)
		  For the year ended	 For the year ended 
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As at 
31 March 2020 

`

As at 
31 March, 2019 

`

2.24 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not 
provided for)

(i) (a) Contingent liabilities

(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as 
debt  ( In respect of the appeal filed by the Central Excise 
department for the Modvat claim of Rs.3,85,764/- the CECAT 
has decided in favour of the department, reducing the claim 
to Rs.2,83,658/- against which the Company has preferred 
an appeal with the High Court, Chennai.  However the 
Company has peid the duty amount of Rs.2,83,658/- under 
protest).	

 2,83,658  2,83,658 

(b) Demand raised by Employees Insurance Corporation for 
claiming damages for the period 2004-2011.   The company 
has preferred an appeal before ESI Court.  However the 
company has paid 15% of the damages for Rs.27,025/- 
under protest

 1,53,425/-  1,53,425/- 

(c)  Demand of Interest  by the Excise Department for certain 
non compliances has been appealed by the company  12,094  12,094/- 

(d)  Appeal preferred by the company before CESTAT 
for the duty and penalty demanded by the Customs 
Department in 2006-07 which has also been  paid is pending 
decision.	

—  98,560/- 

(e) Appeal preferred by the company before CESTAT for 
the duty, interest and penalty demanded by the Excise 
Department for the year 2007-08 for Rs.75,74,834/- and 
company has  paid as pre deposit for Rs.10,00,000/-  under 
protest  which is pending decision.

— 65,74,834/

(2) Other money for which the Company is contingently liable

a) Letter of Credit established by the Bankers and outstanding 
as on the date of the Balance Sheet	  1,25,35,226  54,70,705 

b) Export bills discounted with Bankers as on the date of the 
Balance Sheet  34,72,832  60,18,126 

(b) Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 
capital account and not provided for.  18,64,158  9,82,901 

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Contd.)
Note 2.  Additional information to the financial statements
Note		  Particulars
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(ii)	 Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
Act, 2006. As per the information available with the company till date, none of the suppliers have 
informed the company about their having registered themselves under the “Micro, Small and Medium 
enterprises development Act, 2006.  As such information required under the Act can not be complied 
and therefore not disclosed for the year.

	 Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been 
identified on the basis of information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by 
the auditors.

For the  
year ended 

31 March 2020 
`

For the 
year ended 

31 March, 2019 
`

(iii) Value of imports calculated on CIF basis
Raw materials — —
Components and Consumable —   21,18,249 
Total Components and Spare Parts —    21,18,249 

(iv) Expenditure in foreign currency
Professional and consultation fees  23,13,706  12,83,043 

(v) Earnings in foreign currency
Export of goods calculated on FOB basis  36,73,21,867  42,11,04,609 

(vi) Details of consumption of imported and indigenous 
items

For the  year ended 
31 March 2020

Imported	 ` %

Raw materials	 —
(—)

—
(—)

Components and Consumable  36,16,970 
 (16,79,674)

100.00 
(100.00)

Total  36,16,970 
 (16,79,674)

100.00 
(100.00)

Indigenous

Raw materials  18,27,49,220 
 (18,74,97,302)

 67.11 
 (67.64)

Components and Consumable  8,89,67,073 
 (8,97,05,641)

 32.89 
 (32.36)

Total  27,17,16,293 
 (27,72,02,944)

100
(100)

Note: Figures / percentages in brackets relates to the previous year.

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Contd.)
Note 2.  Additional information to the financial statements
Note		  Particulars
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2.25	 Employee benefit plans

a	 Defined contribution plans	
	 The Company makes Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund contributions to defined contribution 

plans for qualifying employees. Under the Schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified 
percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits.  The Company recognised ` Rs. 20,19,753/- 
(year ended 31 March, 2019 Rs.18,79,839) towards Provident Fund contribution and Rs.17,64,825/- 
(Year ended 31 March, 2019 Rs22,36,559) towards Employees State Insurance contribution in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. The contributions payable  are at the rates specified in the rules of the 
schemes. 

b	 Defined benefit plans	
	 The Company offers the following employee benefit schemes to its employees:
			  i. Gratuity     ii. Leave Encashment
	 The following table sets out the funded status of the defined benefit schemes and the amount 

recognised in the financial statements:  

Particulars

For the year ended 
31.03.2020

for the year ended 
31.03.2019

Gratuity                                   Leave 
Encashment    Gratuity                                  Leave 

Encashment    

Employee Profile
Age of Retirement  58  58  58  58 
No. of Employees  56  53  51  54 
Total monthly relevant salary for gratuity  6,38,470  5,13,718 
Total monthly relevant salary for leave  7,78,210  6,93,616 
Total monthly Cost to Company (CTC) for leave  8,68,795  7,75,770 
Average Age  45.30  45.00  46.00  44.80 
Average past service  17.90  18.30  19.90  18.70 
No. of Leave days (EL)  778.00  828.00 
Estimated Average Future working life  9.30  9.30  9.00  9.60 
Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate as per para 83 of IND AS19 6.53% 6.53% 7.37% 7.37%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 6.00% 6.00% 8.00% 8.00%
Attrition rate fixed by Enterprise 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%

FUNDING MECHANISM partly 
funded unfunded partly 

funded unfunded

Expected Utilization Pattern of Carried Forward Leave Days
# Proportion of Leave availment —  10.00% — 10.00%
# Proportion of encashment during service — 0.00% — 0.00%
# Proportion of encashment on separation — 90.00% — 90.00%
SUMMARY OF KEY RESULTS
PRESENT VALUE OF OBLIGATION (PVO)  57,38,275  4,37,517 57,29,034  4,44,599 

Notes forming part of the financial statements
Note 2. Disclosures under Accounting Standards (contd.)	
Note		  Particulars
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2.26a.	Segment information	 (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars 

For the year ended 31 March, 2020
Business segments Total
A B

Outside India Within India `

Revenue  3,907.63 
(4,476.09)

 1,777.47 
(1,327.42)

 5,685.10 
(5,803.51)

Total  3,907.63 
(4,476.09)

 1,777.47 
(1,327.42)

 5,685.10 
(5,803.51)

Segment result  329.87 
 (603.15)

 174.65 
 (122.12)

 504.53 
 (725.28)

Unallocable expenses (net)  460.75 
 (465.72)

Other income (net)  106.38 
 (187.28)

Profit before taxes  150.16 
 (446.83)

Tax expense  16.63 
 (147.76)

Net profit for the year  133.53 
 (299.07)

2.26 b.	The geographic segments individually contributing 10 percent or more of the Company’s revenues 
and segment assets are shown separately:

Geographic Segment 

Revenues 
For the year ended  

31.03.2020
`

India  1,665.95 
 (1,311.05)

Others (Middle East)  3,731.96 
 (4,267.63)

	 Note : Figures in brackets related to the previous year.

2.27	 Related party transactions	
	 Description of relationship	 Names of related parties

	 Enterprises in which Directors have 
	 Significant influence	 Haitima India Pvt. Ltd.

Notes forming part of the financial statements
Note 2. Disclosures under Accounting Standards (contd.)	
Note		  Particulars
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	 Key Management Personnel	 A V Palaniswamy - Managing Director
		  Jayaram Govindarajan - Whole Time Director
		  Panath Anitha - Executive Director
		  J Saravanan - Chief Financial Officer

	 Relatives of Key Management Personnel	 Mrs Kumudha Palaniswamy 
and their Enterprises	 (wife of Mr A V Palaniswamy)

	 Note: Related parties as identified by the Management.

Details of related party transactions during the year ended 31 March, 2020 and balances 
outstanding as at 31 March, 2020

` in lakhs
KMP / 

Director
Relatives of 

KMP Others Total

Expenses

Remuneration  51.38 
 (51.85)

 1.20 
 (1.20)

—
(—)

 52.58 
 (53.05)

Director Sitting Fees  3.63 
 (2.80)

— 
 (—)

—
(—)

 3.63 
 (2.80)

Other Expenses  1.90 
 (8.63)

 0.65 
 (0.36)

—
(—)

 2.55 
 (8.99)

Outstanding at end of the year

Payable —
(—)

—
(—)

 — 
 (0.44) 

 — 
 (0.44) 

Advances & Receivable —
(—)

—
(—)

0.28 
(—)

0.28 
(—)

	 Note : Figures in bracket relates to the previous year.

Note Particulars For the year ended
31.03.2020

For the year ended
31.03.2019

2.28 Earning per share   

Net profit / (loss) for the year from continuing 
operations (` In lakhs)  133.53  299.07 

Net Profit / (Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders  133.53  299.07 
Weighted average number of equity shares  90,83,182  90,83,182 
Par value per share 10 10
Basic and diluted earnings per share in Rupees  1.47  3.29 

Note: 	 The weighted average number of shares takes into account the weighted average effect of shares to 
be issued pursuant to Merger. 

Notes forming part of the financial statements
Note 2. Disclosures under Accounting Standards (contd.)	
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2.29	 Deferred Taxation :	 (` in  lakhs)

Opening 
Balance as on 

01.04.2019
` 

Changes/
(credit) in P&L 
during the year

` 

As at 
31.03.2020

Deferred tax Liability on account of

Fixed Assets  830.94  15.74  846.68 

Total  830.94  15.74  846.68 

Deferred Tax Asset on Account of

Gratuity  0.69  3.07  3.76 

Leave Encashment & Bonus  1.96  0.03  1.99 

Unabsorbed Depreciation and business loss  622.22 —    622.22 

Total  624.87  3.10  627.97 

Net Deferred Tax Liability (Asset)  206.07  12.64  218.71 

	 In accordance with Accounting Standard 22, the deferred tax Asset of Rs.12.64 lacs for the year have 
been recognised in Profit and Loss statement.

2.30	 COVID-19	

	 In view of the complete lockdown across the country due to outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, our 
factory operations are scaled down to a complete shut down as per the directions of the local bodies/
government. COVID-19 has caused significant disruptions to business, conducting counting of 
physical inventory at a date other than 31st March’2020.  The management has considered the 
possible effects, if any, that may impact the carrying amounts of all assets and expects no impairment 
to the carrying amounts of all assets.

2.31.	 Previous year figures

	 Previous year’s figures have been restated, rearranged and regrouped, wherever necessary.

Notes forming part of the financial statements
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